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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT—

EEHRES

Business review

In 2015, the Government of the People’s Republic of China
(“PRC” or “China”) continued to lead the global market in terms
of renewable energy investment. China helped to push the
global renewable installed capacity beyond 900 GW. 2015 was
also an exciting year for the world and for the renewable energy
industry as a worldwide agreement was reached at COP21
in Paris to tackle climate change. The agreement reaffirms
the goal of limiting global temperature increase well below 2
degrees Celsius, while urging efforts to limit the increase to 1.5
degrees Celsius. In order to achieve this target and to further
cut emissions, China has committed to continue investing in
renewable energy over the coming decade.

Despite a slowing economy which has reduced demand for
electricity, demand for renewable energy is expected to remain
strong as the government continues to implement policies
and regulations that encourage energy efficiency and use of
renewable energy. China has become the world’s largest wind
power market in terms of both new and aggregate installed
capacity. China’s new installed wind power capacity is
expected to have reached about 30 Giga-Watt (“GW”) in 2015,
representing a significant growth of over 30 percent from a year
earlier.

2015 was an important year for the industry given it was the year
that preparation began for the 13th Five-Year Plan (2016-2020).
In March 2015, the government promulgated a power sector
reform policy document (commonly referred to as “Document
No. 9”) which sets out the blueprint for the liberalization of
the electricity market. This blueprint will increase the share of
renewable energy in electricity generation. At the same time,
planning for new and construction of approved ultra-high-
voltage transmission lines has accelerated. These new lines go
from northern to southern China and from western to eastern
China, and will reduce the curtailment problems in Northwest
China, Inner Mongolia and Northeast China.

In 2015, China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (“CRE”
or the “Company”, and with its subsidiaries, collectively, the
“Group”) commenced commercial operations for its Siziwang
Qi Phase Il (49.5 Mega-Watt (“MW”) wind farm. The Group now
has seven wind farms with total gross generating capacity of
660 MW. For the year, the Group also focused on strengthening
the operational performance of its existing wind farms in terms
of enhancing the safety management systems, reliability and
availability of the wind turbines. At the same time, the Group
focused on cost control and implementing measures to reduce
the impact of curtailment.
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Business review (continued)

Wind conditions returned to normal in 2015. Although some
of the wind farms in Northern China still experienced heavy
curtailment, overall the wind farms continued to operate reliably
with an average of 1,983 utilisation hours, which is above
the national average utilisation of 1,728 hours in 2015. This
outperformance is a strong indicator that the Group is able to
identify quality wind farms and to operate them efficiently.

The Group recorded revenue of HK$132.9 million, an increase
of 37% compared to 2014. The net profit after tax attributable
to the equity holders was HK$40.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2015, which represents a basic earnings per share
of HK1.72 cents. The Group has total assets of HK$2,262.7
million as at 31 December 2015 and its cash position remains
healthy, with cash in the bank of HK$185.5 million. Net asset
value per share is HK68.2 cents.

Prospects

CRE was an early mover in the PRC, investing immediately
after the Renewable Energy Law was passed in 2005. This
law provided an umbrella framework for regulating renewable
energy in China. We can and will capitalize on our long
presence and close relationships in China and continue to
follow a niche investor approach focusing on renewable energy
projects.

By 2020, non-fossil energy is expected to account for about
15% of the consumption of China’s primary energy. President Xi
Jinping has announced that China intends to increase its effort
to limit its emissions, and to increase the share of non-fossil
fuels in primary energy consumption to around 20% by 2030.
As a result, as China enters into the era of “low-carbon green
investment”, the development and investment potential remains
promising.
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Prospects (continued)

On the development front, the Group has over 1.3 GW wind
project pipeline; however around 1.1 GW of the pipeline is in
Inner Mongolia, which is currently experiencing significant
curtailment. As a result, the Group will only develop this pipeline
when it is satisfied that the curtailment problem will be resolved.
Therefore, the Group is more actively working in areas where
curtailment is less of a problem. The Group has the exclusive
development rights of over 200 MW capacity in Hebei and
Henan province, which could be approved and constructed
during the 13th Five-Year Plan Period (2016-2020). At the same
time, we are exploring opportunities to secure and develop
new wind projects in other areas beyond the existing four
provinces in which we have established our presence. We will
be mainly focusing on provinces with minimal or no curtailment
in Southern China.

In an attempt to stimulate the economy, interest rates have been
cut five times in 2015. Falling interest rates are expected to
continue in 2016, which will help reduce the finance costs for
the Group’s existing and future projects.

While the Group has remained primarily focused in the wind
industry, we have been closely monitoring the development of
various renewable technologies in terms of their commercial
and economical viability. It is noted that investment in solar
power has accelerated globally and in China for the last two
years given the significant drop in solar panels price and the
various policies implemented supporting the industry. As such,
the Group is exploring potential investments in solar projects.
We will continue to follow our prudent and selective investment
strategy when such opportunities arise.

Throughout the years, the Group has developed a solid
foundation in China as a long term investor-operator in the
renewable energy industry. We intend to continue investing
in renewable energy, and are open to entering into strategic
alliances.

Acknowledgements

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my greatest
thanks to all our business partners, employees, management
and shareholders for the dedication and support you have
shown for CRE throughout the year under review.

OEIl Kang, Eric
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE D

Financial Review

For the year ended 31 December 2015, China Renewable
Energy Investment Limited (“CRE” or the “Company”, and with
its subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) recorded a turnover in
its alternative energy business of HK$132.9 million, an increase
of 37% from HK$97.3 million for the same period in 2014. Gross
profit was HK$44.3 million, a 85% increase from the gross
profit of HK$24.0 million in 2014. The wind resource returned to
normal in 2015 and with the contribution from Siziwang Qi Phase
Two wind farm, which commenced operations on January 1,
enabled the Group to record increased revenue and gross
profit.

Changma performed particularly well in 2015. As a result, the
wind farms under the associated companies contributed profits
of HK$60.9 million, an increase of 35% compared to 2014.

With careful control over the costs, the Group recorded a net
profit after tax attributable to the equity holders of HK$40.5
million for 2015 (2014: a net profit after tax of HK$14.5 million).
Basic earnings per share was HK1.72 cents as compared to the
previous year of HK0.61 cents per share.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s total bank borrowings
was HK$556.7 million as compared to HK$679.8 million in
2014. The difference was mainly due to repayment of principal
instalments and currency exchange differences.

The bank borrowings include interest-bearing Renminbi bank
loans to the Group’s wind farm projects in the People’s Republic
of China, with interest rates fixed at the People’s Bank of
China rates. The maturity dates for the Group’s outstanding
borrowings were spread over the next ten years. There were
HK$84.9 million repayable within one year, HK$344.1 million
repayable within two to five years and HK$127.7 million
repayable after five years.

The Company entered into an agreement with STAR Butterfly
Energy, Ltd. on 24 July 2015 to buy back 300,000,000 non-
voting convertible preference shares at the total consideration
of HK$93.9 million by cash. The transaction was completed in
October 2015. This effectively reduces the Group’s unrestricted
bank deposits and cash to HK$185.5 million as at 31 December
2015 (2014: unrestricted bank deposits and cash was
HK$278.3 million).

As the borrowings and incomes are in Renminbi, no hedging is
required. The Group did not use any financial instruments for
financial hedging purposes during the period under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EIEEsim & 2

Financial Review (continued)

Details of Charges in Group Assets

The Group’s subsidiaries have charged their assets including
wind power equipment, prepaid land lease payments and trade
receivables, worth approximately RMB917.5 million (equivalent
to HK$1,082.9 million) as security for the bank borrowings as
at 31 December 2015. Assets, worth approximately RMB988.8
million (equivalent to HK$1,236.5 million), were charged as at
31 December 2014. The difference was due to the depreciation
of assets and fluctuation of the Renminbi currency.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s gearing ratio, which was
the total borrowings less unrestricted bank deposits and cash
divided by total equity, was 23% as compared to 23% as at 31
December 2014.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2015 (Nil as at 31 December 2014).

Business Review

In 2015, China’s economy grew less than expected. As a result,
the growth of electricity consumption declined. However, it is
significant that the development of low-carbon development
energy has become one of China’s major growth engines. The
investment in renewable energy continues to increase year-on-
year. Various supportive government polices also continued
in 2015 such as the increase in the renewable energy levy
from 1.5 cents to 1.9 cents (27% increase). This levy is used
to support the development of renewable energy projects.
Significant progress is also being made in the development of
ultra-high-voltage (“UHV”) transmission lines. These “west-to-
east” and “north-to-south” UHV transmission lines are expected
to significantly reduce curtailment by 2017 to 2018.

Throughout the year, the Group’s operational team has
continued to focus on enhancing safety, and optimising
the operation and maintenance plan through detailed cost
and risk assessment. These efforts will ensure that the wind
farms continue to operate efficiently. In 2015, all wind farms
dispatched a total of 1,308.8 million kilo-Watt-hour (“kWh?”),
representing an increase of 17% as compared to 2014. The
average utilization hours was 1,983 hours, representing an
increase of 150 hours as compared to 2014. The increase is
primarily attributable to the increase in wind resources from the
Changma wind farm.
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Business Review (continued)

On the development front, the Group continued to expand,
putting into operation the Siziwang Qi Phase Il 49.5 mega-watt
(“MW?”) wind farm in Inner Mongolia, increasing the Group’s
net wind capacity by 17%. The Group now has seven wind
farms with total gross generating capacity of 660 MW and net
capacity of 341 MW. One wholly-owned wind project, Songxian
Phase | Wind Project (“Songxian Phase 1”) in Henan with a total
generating capacity of 74 MW was included in the Fifth Batch
of the Wind Power Project Approval Plan promulgated by the
National Energy Administration in April 2015.

As a long term investor-operator in the renewable energy
sector, CRE will continue to implement its investment strategy to
selectively invest in high quality renewable energy projects and
to expand our portfolio in a sustainable way.

Mudanjiang and Muling Wind Farms
Mudanjiang and Muling wind farms, located in Heilongjiang
province, have a total of 59.5 MW of wind power capacity. The
wind farms started commercial operation in the fourth quarter
of 2007. The Group holds majority stakes of 86% and 86.68%
respectively. Power despatch was around 54.4 million kWh,
which was equivalent to 915 utilisation hours in 2015. Lower
demand in the region caused higher curtailment and led to poor
performance this year as compared to last year’'s 63.8 million
kWh (or 1,072 utilisation hours) power dispatch.

Siziwang Qi Phase | & Il Wind Farm

Siziwang Qi Phase | & Il wind farm has a total of 99 MW of wind
power capacity and is wholly-owned by the Group. It is located
16 kilometres north of Wulanhua under Siziwang Qi of Western
Inner Mongolia. Commercial operation of Phase | and Il started
in January 2011 and January 2015 respectively. The wind farms
are the first two phases of a strategic 1,000 MW wind farm base
for the Group. Siziwang Qi Phase | & Il wind farm dispatched
approximately 169 million kWh (an equivalent to 1,708 utilisation
hours) in 2015. In 2014, only Phase | was in operation,
dispatching 88.9 million kWh (or 1,795 utilisation hours). Higher
curtailment accounted for this year’s drop in power dispatch.
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Business Review (continued)

Danjinghe Wind Farm

The Group has a 40% effective equity interest in the 200
MW Danjinghe wind farm located in Hebei. The majority and
controlling shareholder is the wind division subsidiary of China
Energy Conservation and Environmental Protection Group
(collectively “CECEP”), which holds 60%. The entire wind
farm, which consists of three phases, started commercial
operation in September 2010. The power dispatched in 2015
was approximately 398.7 million kWh (an equivalent to 1,994
utilisation hours). As the project was obtained through the
national tendering process, the wind farm enjoyed minimal
curtailment. However, slightly lower wind resources led to a
decrease in power dispatch as compared to last year’'s 422.7
million kWh (or 2,113 utilisation hours).

Changma Wind Farm

Changma wind farm, located in Gansu province, is a joint
venture with the wind division subsidiary of CECEP. The Group
has a 40% effective interest in the project company. The 201
MW wind farm started commercial operation in November 2010.
This project, also obtained through national tendering, enjoyed
minimal curtailment in 2015 and dispatched around 499.0
million kWh (an equivalent to 2,483 utilisation hours), which is
higher than last year’'s 354.7 million kWh (or 1,765 utilisation
hours) power dispatch due to better wind resources.

Lunaobao Wind Farm

Lunaobao wind farm is a joint venture with the wind division
subsidiary of CECEP, and is adjacent to the Danjinghe wind
farm. The Group has a 30% effective equity interest. The 100.5
MW wind farm commenced commercial operation in February
2011. Unlike Danjinghe, Lunaobao wind farm was not obtained
through the national tendering process; and, hence, does
not enjoy low curtailment. The power dispatched in 2015 was
around 187.6 million kWh (an equivalent to 1,866 utilisation
hours). Despite slightly lower wind resources, the performance
in 2015 was close to last year’'s 188.9 million kWh (or 1,879
utilisation hours) as new and upgraded transmission lines in
the region were completed in mid-2015, significantly reducing
curtailment in the second half of 2015.
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OUTLOOK

On the Policy front, in December 2015, the National
Development and Reform Committee (“NDRC” or, on regional
level, “DRC”) announced an adjustment to the onshore wind
power benchmark feed-in-tariffs to partially compensate for
the lower turbine prices. The price cut range was lower than
expected, and is a positive signal to the industry, providing
certainty for developers seeking to develop new projects under
the 13th Five-Year Plan Period (2016-2020). For onshore wind
power projects which are approved between 1 January 2016
and 31 December 2018, the tariff will be lowered by RMB2
cents/kWh in regions I, Il and Ill, and by RMB1 cent/kWh in
region V. For onshore wind power projects which are approved
between 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2020, the tariff shall
be further lowered by RMB3 cents/kWh in regions I, Il and IlI,
and by RMB2 cents/kWh in region IV. There are no price cuts for
existing wind farms.

Regarding our existing wind farms, the Group will continue
to enhance the operational performance by optimizing our
operation and maintenance strategy to achieve higher availability.
The Group will continue to adopt industry best practices and
strengthen various safety and operational related systems
and procedures. In 2016, we expect that our wind farms in
Northern China will continue to experience curtailment. However,
curtailment is expected to reduce gradually in the coming two
years as the new UHV transmission lines are commissioned.

On the development side, the Group’s wind farm project in
Songxian County of Luoyang City in Henan province, has a
potential of 100 MW capacity, and will be developed in phases.
Songxian Phase |, with a capacity of 74 MW, is at advanced
stage of development, with a target of obtaining the final
project approval before the end of 2016. Another 100 MW
potential wind project is under wind measurement in Zhangbei
County of Zhang Jiakou city in Hebei province. The China State
Council has recently given Zhang Jiakou approval to serve as a
demonstration site for renewable energy. The area will serve as a
new energy base for Hebei, Beijing and Tianjin. Recently, Zhang
Jiakou and Beijing successfully bid for the Olympic Games. The
ensuing rapid economic development should further increase
demand for renewable energy in Zhang Jiakou. The city aims
to have renewable energy account for 30 percent of all energy
consumed by 2020, and 50 percent by 2030. Although the
project is still under early stage of development, it is expected to
be developed within the 13th Five-Year Plan period.

The Group’s wind farm investments are very capital intensive
and require project loans. However, there is little currency risk
as revenue, expenses, and project debt are denominated in
Renminbi. The currently low interest rates will benefit the Group.
While the Group has a strong balance sheet, we may explore
additional financing channels that are available when required.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EIEEsim & 2

OUTLOOK (continued)

Although the Group is mainly investing in wind projects, we
have also been closely monitoring the development of various
other renewable technologies. Investment in solar power
in China has accelerated over the last two years with the
significant drop in the price for solar panels. The government
has also implemented a variety of policies to support this
industry, such as providing a favorable solar benchmark
feed-in-tariff. Solar capacity is expected to grow significantly
over the next decades, and is expected to exceed wind. The
government targets solar to have installed capacity of 100-150
Giga-watt (“GW”) in 2020 and 500-600 GW in 2030, compared
to wind’s 200-250 GW in 2020 and 400 GW in 2030. Given this
expected growth, the Group will consider investing in solar
projects if opportunities arise.

With nearly 10 years of experience as a long term investor-
operator in the renewable energy industry, the Group has
developed a strong base in China. We expect to continue our
growth, not only by developing our own pipeline, but also by
considering strategic alliances.

Employees

As at the end of December 2015, the Group’s operations
in Hong Kong and Mainland China employed a total of
69 employees. The Group had also appointed technical
consultants on contract terms for its alternative energy projects.
All employees are remunerated according to the nature of
their jobs, their individual performances, the Group’s overall
performance, and the prevailing marketing conditions.

Environmental, Social and Governance Issues
The Group is one of the leading players involved in
environmental protection in China. CRE believes that its
operations can greatly benefit the environment while also
earning profits for its shareholders. The Group has over 660
MW of operating wind farms in Hebei, Heilongjiang, Gansu
and Inner Mongolia provinces. The electricity that the Group
generated makes it possible to reduce the amount of electricity
generated from coal fired power plants. As a result, the amount
of carbon emissions and pollutants that enter the atmosphere is
reduced.

Through hiring local people to operate the project companies
and providing them with a market compatible remuneration
package and staff benefits, the Group is able to share its
operation returns with the local community and contribute back
to society.

The Group will explore other means to contribute more to the
environment and to society once the Group grows larger and
profitability increases.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRERBWE

Corporate Governance Practices

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (the “Company”,
and with its subsidiaries, collectively, the “Group”) is committed
to good corporate governance principles and practices and its
board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) recognises
that it is essential to safeguard the interests of shareholders,
customers and employees and uphold accountability,
transparency and responsibility of the Company.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
the code provisions and certain recommended best practices
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”),
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year ended
31 December 2015, save for the deviations with considered
reasons as explained stated in the following relevant
paragraphs.

Board of Directors

Board Composition

The Company has at all time during the year ended 31
December 2015 maintained a balanced board with strong
independent element. The Board currently comprises six
Directors with three Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. Each Director possesses expertise
and experience and provides checks and balances for
safeguarding the interests of the Group and the shareholders
as a whole. In addition, the Company had maintained three
Independent Non-executive Directors which formed at least
one-third of the full Board. Biographical details of the Directors
and their relationships, where applicable, are set out in pages
33 to 36 of this Annual Report.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three Independent Non-executive Directors with at least one
Independent Non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The independence of the Independent
Non-executive Directors was assessed in accordance
with the applicable Listing Rules. Each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors has provided to the Company an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all of them are
independent.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
According to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQO”) should
be separate and performed by different individuals. Under the
current organisation structure of the Company, the functions
of CEO are performed by the Chairman, Mr. OEI Kang, Eric,
with support from the other Executive Directors. The Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management
of the Company, and has been effective in discharging its
responsibilities satisfactorily and facilitating the Company’s
operation and business development. The Board will review the
structure from time to time to ensure it continues to meet the
principle and will consider segregation of the roles of chairman
and CEO if and when appropriate.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs
and formulating business strategies with a view to maximising
its financial performance and shareholders’ value.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities and powers
to the Board committees to assist it in efficiently implementing
those functions specified in written terms of reference.

Decisions relating to the long-term objectives and viability of
the Company, and any acquisitions or disposal of transactions
and investments of any kind with value exceeding the authority
of the Executive Committee set out in its terms of reference or
the threshold for discloseable transactions for the Company as
defined in the Listing Rules from time to time are reserved for
the Board; whereas decisions on matters set out in the terms of
reference of the Executive Committee and those not specifically
reserved for the Board are delegated to the Executive
Committee and management, as applicable.

Directors are provided with sufficient resources to seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties
at the Company’s expense and are encouraged to consult
with the Company’s senior management independently. The
management provides monthly management accounts of the
Group to the Directors to apprise them of the Group’s latest
performance and financial position.
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Board of Directors (continued)
Responsibilities of Directors (continued)
Directors are requested to disclose to the Company at the time
of his appointment and in a timely manner for any change,
the number and nature of offices held in public companies
or organisations and other significant commitments. Such
changes will be updated and published in the annual and
interim reports as appropriate.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Group’s Directors for their liabilities arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

Nomination, Appointment and Re-election of
Directors

All new appointment of Directors and nomination of Directors
proposed for re-election at the annual general meeting are
first considered by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on criteria
such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time
and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. Having
due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will then be put recommendations to the
Board for decision. Details of the role and function as well as a
summary of the work performed by the Nomination Committee
are set out under the heading of “Nomination Committee”
below.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles of Association”), the nearest to but not less than
one-third of the Directors shall retire from office by rotation but
are eligible for re-election by shareholders at the annual general
meeting provided that every Director is subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. New appointments to
the Board are also subject to re-election by shareholders at the
next following annual general meeting.

All Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
were appointed with no specific term, but are subject to the
aforesaid rotation requirement in the Articles of Association,
accomplishing the same purpose as being appointed for a
specific term pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code.
The rotating Directors who are subject to retirement and re-
election at the 2016 annual general meeting are set out on page
39 of this Annual Report.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) on 8 July 2013.

Below is the summary of the Board Diversity Policy:

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board, and sees increasing diversity at Board level as
an essential element in maintaining a competitive advantage. All
appointments of the members of the Board are made on merit,
in the context of the skills and experience the Board as a whole
requires to be effective. In designing the Board composition,
the Company is committed to equality of opportunity in all
aspects and does not discriminate on the grounds, including
but not limited to, ethnicity, gender, age, cultural and religious
background.

The Nomination Committee discussed and agreed the
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board
and recommended them to the Board for adoption. During the
year, the Committee reviewed the existing composition of the
Board and received and accepted the progress report from
the management in relation to identified business skills and
experience required and their ranking and the action plan for
recruiting new Board member. It also monitored the review of
the Company’s recruitment process to reinforce its commitment
to the principle of equal opportunity.

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees
The Directors meet from time to time to discuss and exchange
ideas on the affairs of the Company. The Board has set up
various Board Committees, among others, the Audit Committee,
the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
the Executive Committee for overseeing particular aspects
of the Group’s affairs. The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee are available on both the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees
(continued)

During the year, the following meetings of the Board, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee were held and the attendance of the individual
Directors at these meetings is set out in the table below:

FR BEFE ERLZBES REZESRFMH
REELETTIER  SEENZRFER 2L
EIEREN TR

Number of meetings attended/
Number of meetings eligible to attend

HEERBE SERLESEYE
Audit  Remuneration Nomination

Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee
Y BExg EREES FMEES REZEE
Executive Directors #I{TE%E
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric E/I%E 4 4/4  2/2 (NotelffsE)  2/2 (NoteffizE)  1/1 (Noteli3E)
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel 25754 4/4  2/2 (Notelfi=E) N/A i N/A T F
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy =18 R 54 4/4 1/2 (Noteft =) N/A T iE A N/A &
Non-executive Director ¥ #HTEE
Mr. WANG Sing E#t5t 4 0/3 0/4 N/A @A N/A i@ A

(resigned on 22 October 2015)

(R=ZBE—AFTHA=1T=HET)
Mr. HUNG Leung =4 1/3 0/4 N/A T EFA N/A TNEF

(alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing)

(ML ZERESE)

(resigned on 22 October 2015)

(R-ZBE—AFTHA=1T=HET)
Independent Non-executive Directors B #TESE
Mr. YU Hon To, David 1% &£ 4/4 4/4 2/2 1/1
Mr. TIAN Yuchuan B E)I| %4 4/4 4/4 2/2 1/1
Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest BJk &0t £ 4/4 4/4 2/2 1/1

(resigned on 1 January 2016)

(RZFE—NF—H—HAFHT)

Note: The Executive Directors attended the relevant meetings as invitees.

Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all regular
board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to
attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.
For committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.
The agenda and accompanying board papers are dispatched
to the Directors or committee members at least three days
before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time
to review the papers and be adequately prepared for the
meetings. When Directors or committee members are unable
to attend a meeting, they are advised of the matters to be
discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known
to the Chairman and CEO prior to the meeting.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Meetings of the Board and Board Committees
(continued)

Minutes of the board meetings and committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the
Board and the committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each
board meeting and committee meeting are sent to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the date of the
meeting. All Directors have access to the Company Secretary,
who is responsible for ensuring that the board procedures are
complied with and advising the Board on compliance matters.

The Chairman and CEO acknowledged the significance of
promoting a culture of openness and debate among the
Board members. To facilitate the effective contribution of
Non-executive Directors, the Chairman and CEO held a meeting
with Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Director without the other Executive Directors present in June
2015.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee
with written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee,
chaired by an Independent Non-executive Director, currently
comprises three members namely Mr. YU Hon To, David,
Mr. TIAN Yuchuan and Mr. ZHANG Songyi, all of whom are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure for Directors and senior management,
and reviewing their remuneration packages. In arriving at its
recommendations, the Remuneration Committee will consult
with the Chairman and CEO whenever it thinks fit and take
into consideration factors such as the remuneration paid by
comparable companies, skill, knowledge, time commitment
and responsibilities of Directors. The Remuneration Committee
has the responsibility, powers and discretion to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management.
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Remuneration Committee (continued)
During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee
held two meetings to review, inter alia, the remuneration
policy and structure of Directors including those retired and
re-elected at the 2015 annual general meeting of the Company
and approve the year-end bonus and salary increment of the
Executive Directors. No Director was involved in deciding his
own remuneration. The attendance records of each member at
the meetings of the Remuneration Committee held during his
term of office are set out on page 17. Details of the Directors’
and senior management’'s remuneration for the year are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee, chaired
by an Independent Non-executive Director, currently comprises
three members namely Mr. YU Hon To, David, Mr. TIAN
Yuchuan and Mr. ZHANG Songyi, all of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee held one
meeting during the year, and the attendance details of each
member are set out on page 17.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board at least annually,
identifying suitable candidates for directorship, assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors, and
making recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

During the year, the work performed by the Nomination
Committee includes the following:

o reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board;

° reviewing the structure of board committees;

° assessing the independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors and sufficient number of
independent directors to maintain a balanced board;

° assessing the qualification and experience of new
candidates for directorship and making recommendation
to the Board on matters relating to the appointment of
Director;

o making recommendation to the Board relating to the
re-appointment of the retiring Directors; and

o reviewing the progress report from the management in
relation to the Board Diversity Policy.
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Nomination Committee (continued)

The Company had provided the Nomination Committee
sufficient resources to perform its duties. Where necessary,
the Nomination Committee could seek independent
professional advice, at the Company’s expense, to perform its
responsibilities.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee with written
terms of reference which have been updated from time to time
to align with the code provisions set out in the CG Code. The
Audit Committee, chaired by an Independent Non-executive
Director, currently comprises three members namely Mr. YU
Hon To, David, Mr. TIAN Yuchuan and Mr. ZHANG Songyi, all of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to,
inter alia, review and supervise the Group’s financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management procedures, as
well as oversee the adequacy of the accounting and financial
reporting resources. While recognised corporate governance
is the collective responsibility of all Directors, the Board has
delegated the corporate governance functions to the members
of Audit Committee who are in an objective and independent
position to oversee the corporate governance compliance.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two
meetings together with senior management and external auditor
and two private meetings with the external auditor without
the management’s presence. The attendance details of each
member are set out on page 17. The major work performed
by the Audit Committee during the year included reviewing
interim and annual financial statements, internal audit reports
on the internal controls and risk management matters, the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance as
well as reviewing and recommending reappointment of external
auditor.

The Company has adopted a whistleblowing policy for
employees to raise concerns, in confidence, with the
designated executive who is accountable to the Audit
Committee about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
unlawful activities, or activities violating the Group’s Code of
Conduct and Business Ethics or otherwise amounting to serious
improper conduct and to ensure protection from possible
retaliation against any of our employees who has reported
concerns in good faith.
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Executive Committee

The Company has established an Executive Committee with
the key initiatives to manage the Group’s business activities,
and oversee the operating performance and financial position
of the Group and all strategic business units. The Committee
comprises all Executive Directors of the Group. Mr. OEI Kang,
Eric is the Chairman of the Executive Committee.

During the year under review, the Executive Committee met
regularly to review the performance of various business units
of the Group, coordinate overall resources, made financial
and operation decisions delegated by the Board, review and
develop investment strategy and policies of the Company and
make relevant recommendations to the Board.

Investment Committee

Reference was made to the proposed off-market share
buy-back of 300,000,000 preference shares of the Company
(the “Buy-back Shares”) from STAR Butterfly Energy, Ltd. by the
Company (the “Share Buy-back”), details of which were set out
in the circular of the Company dated 28 August 2015,

Mr. WANG Sing, representative of TPG, resigned from the Board
as Star Butterfly Energy, Ltd., an affiliate of TPG, ceased to hold
any preference shares of the Company upon the completion of
the Share Buy-back and cancellation of the Buy-back Shares.

After resignation of Mr. WANG Sing on 22 October 2015, the
Investment Committee had three remaining members, namely,
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric, Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel and Mr.
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy, all of them are Executive Directors
and members of the Executive Committee under the Board.

After having regard to the main functions of the Investment
Committee, which are advisory and non-binding, review and
approve the Group’s material capital expenditures, monitor
the execution of the investment on an ongoing basis, review
and approve periodically policies and guidelines governing
the Group’s investment portfolio, and monitor compliance
with those policies, the Board considered that the incumbent
Executive Committee would be in a position to assume
effectively similar advisory functions and responsibilities of
the Investment Committee with respect to the investments of
the Group. Accordingly, the Board has decided to dissolve
and discharge the Investment Committee with effect from
22 October 2015. The Executive Committee may within its
delegated authority undertake review and consideration
of investments for the Group and report and make
recommendations to the Board for decisions accordingly.
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Delegation by the Board

The management, consisting of the Executive Directors of the
Company and executives, is delegated with responsibilities
for implementing the strategy and direction as adopted
by the Board from time to time, and conducting the day-
to-day operations of the Group. Executive Directors and
executives meet regularly to review the performance of
the businesses of various business units of the Group as a
whole, co-ordinate overall resources and make financial and
operation decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as
to their powers of management including circumstances where
management should report back, and will review the delegation
arrangements on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain
appropriate to the needs of the Group.

Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiries, the Company has obtained
confirmation from all Directors that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

The Company has also adopted a code for dealing in the
Company’s securities by relevant employees, who are likely to
be in possession of unpublished inside information in relation to
the securities of the Group, on no less exacting terms than the
Model Code.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015
which give a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company
and the Group and of the Group’s results and cash flows. In
preparing the financial statements, the Directors have adopted
generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong and
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going
concern basis.

The statement of the Company’s auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is
set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 56 to 57.
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Auditor’'s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the fees in respect
of audit and non-audit services provided to the Group by
the auditor amounted to approximately HK$1,550,000 and
HK$525,000 respectively. The non-audit services mainly consist
of interim results review and work on the circular relating to the
convertible shares buy-back and the fees of which amounted to
HK$400,000 and HK$125,000 respectively.

Directors’ Training

For the year ended 31 December 2015, all Directors have
participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The training
programmes included seminars and courses, reviewed the
updated laws, rules and regulations and materials on topics
relevant to the director’s duties and responsibilities. Directors
are requested to provide the Company with their respective
training record. The areas of training received by each Director
are set out below:

ZEENN &
BHE-_ZT-—RAFE+-_A=1+—HIEE  HB@%
HMAASEREEZIIIEEZREERAD R
#3/41,550,00078 7T % 525,00078 7T © IEEZ RS
FESRPIBEEEHRE BB AIRRRDE
BBk T e - HEE A5 5 A400,000%8 T &
125,000/ 7T ©

=23
REBEE_ZE—AF+-_A=+—HLFE 28
BEECLHEBERERE  UREBIYEMAHKL
e - BB BRIEHFE RRE  wB&IE
Z - RAUARROIAREMERESRBERBEZ
B EFRAMARNRIRES A ZEIREE - &
EFLBRZ2IEIGEBEHINMNT

Areas of Training

o
Directors’
duties/
Corporate Law and governance
strategy and regulatory practices Risk
Name of Directors business compliance EEREK management
EEpE CEXRBREE  EERERER ERER RRER
Executive Directors #{TESE
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric Z %4 v v v v
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel &7k %% v v v v/
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy ZHER %4 v v v v
Non-executive Director #HTES
Mr. WANG Sing Tt E 4
(resigned on 22 October 2015)
(R-ZF—-RFTHA-+_HFHE)
Mr. HUNG Leung #5250 % v
(alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing)
(FHM‘EEZEREE)
(resigned on 22 October 2015)
(RZF—RFEFAZTZHFE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES
Mr. YU Hon To, David &1 EE %4 v/ v v v/
Mr. TIAN Yuchuan B %)% 4 v/ v v v
Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest 58Ik 515 & v/ v v v
(resigned on 1 January 2016)
(R=ZF—~¥E—H—AFT)
FEBERERKEBRAR | T —HFFW 23
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Directors’ Training (continued)

The Company continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments in the statutory and regulatory regime and
the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. In addition, the Directors are regularly
encouraged to enroll in a wide range of professional
development courses and seminars regarding the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements to enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness,
while management is charged with the responsibility to design,
implement and monitor the risk management and internal
control systems to manage risks and compliance.

Risk Management Model

BEEEIE)
AARBENEEIREEHER A ERER
ERRESHE L RATEIRE Y BBRE - H
BITWE - hoh - AQASBHEETHE2MNH
RETRBNEMEER T SEEERRERE
RS LSS HEHE LT AEALR
5o

Bk EE R AR
FERARLRAKE Y BRERRNBELR
g WREHAR - MEEBAABR 0T
B R AR E RN MRS TR SR AR R
EHE -

[ B E AR

The Board / Audit Committee

Exg ENEET

Senior Management
SREEE

LI L L

(Own and Manage Risks) (Oversee Risks)

(REREERR) (EEEEA )
Financial Control
BT B
Management Internal MBE
Controls Control Risk Management
Measures e
ERE T S B g i
W EB%JI?EI flﬁ Compliance
afEs

As the first line of defense, operational management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal controls and
for executing risk and control procedures on day-to-day
operation. Management of Head Office establishes various risk
management and compliance functions to provide direction on
the importance of risk management and monitor the first line of
defense controls. The Internal Control and Risk Management
(“ICRM”) Department reviews and provides independent
assurance on the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control systems of the Group.
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Risk Management and Internal Control [EMBEE R AIPEEE &
(continued)

Internal Control Framework A BB fE SR

The Group has in place an integrated internal control framework — A& B 2 %7 ECOSO (Committee of Sponsoring
that is consistent with the COSO (Committee of Sponsoring  Organisations of the Treadway Commission)#£22
Organisations of the Treadway Commission) framework as —EZ4RE NEPEEIEZRE » S R0 ¢

illustrated below:

Control Environment

° Set the right tone of the Group influencing control consciousness and risk awareness of the staff.
BUASEERNESER  URtEENEEZHKERRA

° Factors include integrity, ethical values, competence, delegation of authority and responsibility.
MERALRST - BEEE - BEEH  REXREAHESEE -

o Foundation for all other components of internal control.

YER P A E R BB BRI A AR BR 0 RO &R -

Risk Assessment

nm#m
Identification, evaluation and analysis of the key risks underlying the achievement of the Group’s
objectives, including the risks relating to the changing regulatory and operating environment; conducted
regularly, forming the basis for determining control activities.
EHER - HEROMBEERASE B RN TIERAR (BEEHEEREEREE(CHAR) - W AULE
A TE B A B RO LA o

Control Activities

ELYEEE

° Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried out and necessary actions are
taken to address the risks that may hinder the achievement of the Group’s objectives.
HEBRLEF  BREEEBZERMSUATUARKRUZTHEENGXELNEBERNAR AR -

° Control activities include authorisations, approvals, verifications, performance reviews, segregation of
duties, asset security, access control, documentation and records.

EEEEERE B RE - A8RS  BEES  BERE - FHUEH - XHFEEEHESE -
Information and Communication
EMRBER

° Pertinent information is identified, captured and provided to the right person in a timely manner.
EREN - Rk AEEATREEEER -
° Channels of communication across the Group and with external parties are established.
BURNEERIPIEAREIRA L BRERE -
° Channels of communication exist for people to report suspected malpractices or improprieties relating to

the Group.
HRBPHREREEEHBEANEREH R TETARLBRERES
Monitoring

BE 2R
==

° Combination of ongoing and separate evaluations of control system’s performance.
FrE R (BRI 4 B PR R AR

° Management and supervisory activities.
EERERTE-

° Internal audit activities.

MBEPEZ TIE -
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Risk Management and Internal Control

(continued)

Control Environment

The actions of management and its demonstrated commitment
to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
practices within the Group are transparent to all. The Group
strives to conduct all business affairs based on good business
ethics and accountability. We have in place a formal Code
of Conduct & Business Ethics that is communicated to all
staff members. We aim to build risk awareness and control
responsibility into our culture and regard them as the foundation
of our risk management and internal control systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed
to manage the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
can provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

We maintain an effective internal audit function, the ICRM
Department, whose main features include:

(i)  independence from operational management;

(i)  fully empowered auditors with access to all data and every
operation of the Group;

(iii) adequate resources and well qualified and capable staff;

(iv) risk-based auditing, concentrating on areas with
significant risks or where significant changes have been
made.

Risk Management

Management has an ongoing process to identify and evaluate
the significant risks facing the Group and to prioritise resources
to manage those that arise. Mitigation strategies and plans
with respect to each key risk identified are developed and
implemented with regular review and update, which include
establishing or enhancing internal controls.

Heads of the departments, projects and business units regularly
review and analyse the key risks associated with achieving
the objectives of their particular departments, activities and
businesses to provide reasonable assurance that internal
controls are both embedded and effective within their areas of
accountability.

26 China Renewable Energy Investment Limited |

Bl EERASPEE

EERIR
EREZTRREBNBERAKEEFRKFD
XBERZRLREDAS BRERSH - A%
BENIERFEEERRTREARIETHER
BEHE YOAVYERANEREBETRTA
HENE2EBET - ARESEREECAR
VREBREBNEZEET  YRZA/ERBRERK
MBPER IR Rt A -

AREBRABERERRA T ERMLEHE
BB B2 AR - R BB B A G BB oL
Bk - REREARTIHEY 2 RE -

AEBERARABEZBAE (B AIPEIE)
HIBEHEaR:

o

£

<t
%

EIBEEE

—
=
[N

(i) =EETEFABERN  AISHAKERE
BN EEER

o

A

(i) AERZRTER URBEBRREARERZE
T

(iv) HETARBAANETLE  SHEEAS
RNEB K BIELEREE) &S -

o\ B i 32
EREERESNRFEAKREIAEZIER
R REBCLEREEAEECELZZERR -
AEEERSECH < T BRER - $IELHTT
RAKES RET 8l YEMRS REN  ETERE
BN A RRES IR E b o

EHF - M REBEM 2 TEVE RS R
IELERERM - BB REGREHEBZEER
% WABMBREANEEEEEEBRAESRE
BB BOEE -

Annual Report 2015



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1¥EAHE

Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

Control Processes

The Board maintains sound and effective risk management and
internal control systems through the following:

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

TEBLRRREARAR |

The Board reviews the Group’s strategic plans and
objectives on an annual basis.

An organisational structure with defined lines of
responsibility and delegation of authority is devised.

Systems and procedures are in place to identify and
evaluate risks on an ongoing basis. Senior executives
review the risk assessment process and monitor the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.

Appropriate policies and key control activities are
maintained with regular review on their effectiveness.

Financial performance is analysed against budget with
variances being accounted for and appropriate actions
taken to rectify deficiencies.

Senior executives ensure compliance with relevant laws,
regulations, standards and ordinances, including Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, the Listing Rules and
the Companies Ordinance, under their responsibility.

The ICRM Department reports directly to the Audit
Committee and the CEQO, and carries out independent
reviews on the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems in
accordance with its annual audit plan approved by the
Audit Committee. Key audit findings and implementation
progress of internal control recommendations are
regularly reported to the Board through the Audit
Committee. Head of the ICRM Department also serves as
the contact person under the Whistleblowing Guideline of
the Company.

—E-HFFH
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(vi)
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Risk Management and Internal Control

(continued)

Review of Internal Control Effectiveness

The Executive Directors of the Company conduct reviews
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, and submit to the Audit Committee a
certification of compliance for effectiveness and efficiency of
operations, reliability of financial reporting, and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations bi-annually. The scope of this
review covers the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

The Audit Committee regularly reviews the audit findings and
implementation progress of internal control recommendations,
and opinion of the ICRM Department on the performance of
risk management and internal control systems of the Group.
External auditor also reports on any control issues identified in
the course of their audit work.

Taking the above into consideration, the Audit Committee
reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems at least once each year and reports to
the Board on such reviews.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, reviewed
and considered the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems effective and adequate for the year ended 31
December 2015. No significant areas of concern that might
affect the operational, financial, and compliance controls and
risk management function of the Group were identified.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Company:

(i) is aware of the obligations under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance, the applicable Listing Rules and other
statutory regulations with regard to the timely and proper
disclosure of inside information, announcements and
financial disclosures and authorises their publication as
required.

(i) has adopted and implemented its Inside Information
Disclosure Policy.

(iii) has in place a Code for Securities Dealing for governing
the securities transactions of those employees who,
because of their positions, are likely to have access to
confidential or inside information.

(iv) identifies and authorises members of the Group’s senior
management to act as the Company’s spokespersons and
respond to external enquiries.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and CEO on
Board or committee matters. He is an employee of HKC Group
who serves both the Company and its holding company, HKC.
All Directors have direct access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary for the ongoing discharge of their duties
and responsibilities. For the financial year ended 31 December
2015, the Company Secretary took more than 15 hours of
relevant professional training organised by the Stock Exchange
and various professional bodies.

Constitutional Documents of the
Company

The Company has published its updated and consolidated
version of Memorandum and Articles of Association at the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company. During the
year, there was no alteration on the constitutional documents of
the Company.
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General Meeting

The last annual general meeting of the Company was held
on 27 May 2015 (the “2015 AGM”). The Chairman and CEO
chaired the 2015 AGM. The external auditor attended the 2015
AGM to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies and auditor independence.

For the extraordinary general meeting held on 9 October
2015 (the “2015 EGM”), at which the Share Buy-back were
considered, the Chairman and CEO chaired the meeting. In
addition, independent financial advisers were also available to
answer questions from the shareholders of the Company.

The attendance record of the individual Directors at the 2015
AGM and 2015 EGM is set out in the table below:

g

~

BRERE

ARAL—ERRAFAGR T —HF IS
SRR —F-AEREBEAE]) -
ERRTHARAE T RFREBFASE

e NERBMALE —T-—AFRRBFEX
T UBEAREE RBEMBSZREREEA
B BRIBER MBI 212 -

IRRTBARER TR _F—AF T ANA
BT ZBRRENRG(ZZF-HAFRREMNAK
g BEBROOBER - H BIMBEM
TEHERE  AEEARRBRRZIER -

=

=

BEEN T HAFERRAFREGR_ZT—RF
RERFRIAE 2 HE sy mT -

2015 AGM 2015 EGM
attended attended
HE-Z-1F HE-ZT—I1F
Name of Directors EEHE BREBEXRE BRRERBFIXE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric =Mk A4 v v
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel RERIE v v
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy EEREAE v v/
Non-executive Director EBITES
Mr. WANG Sing FiEE x x
(resigned on 22 October 2015) (RZF—AF+HZF+ZHFHE)
Mr. HUNG Leung it x x
(alternate director to Mr. WANG Sing) (EMFAECEREE)
(resigned on 22 October 2015) (RZF—AF+HZF+ZHFHE)
Independent Non-executive Directors BIAFHITES
Mr. YU Hon To, David MEERE v =
Mr. TIAN Yuchuan BE)I%E v v
Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest IR EE 4 v/
(resigned on 1 January 2016) (R=ZF—NNF—H—HFT)

Note: Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Director are
required to attend general meetings pursuant to code provision A.6.7 of
the CG Code. All Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive
Director were encouraged to attend the general meeting to inter-face with
shareholders of the Company but some of them were not in a position to
attend the 2015 AGM and 2015 EGM due to overseas commitment and pre-
arranged business engagements.
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Shareholders’ Rights

hEIBLRE

Procedures for shareholders to convene
an extraordinary general meeting

and put forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders can put forward their proposals at an
extraordinary general meeting. Procedures for the
shareholders of the Company to convene an extraordinary
general meeting is provided for under Article 58 of the
Articles of Association.

Under Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any
member(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company shall have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition (“Requisitionists”). The written request
must state the resolution, preferably accompanied by
a statement of not more than one thousand words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution
for the Company’s reference and consideration, signed by
the all Requisitionists concerned.

The written request must be deposited at the head office
of the Company at 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75
Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong, for
the attention of the Company Secretary.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer agent in Hong Kong (the
“Branch Share Registrars”). Upon the Branch Share
Registrars’ confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company will convene an extraordinary general
meeting within two months after the deposit of such
requisition, and will serve sufficient notice in accordance
with the statutory and regulatory requirements to all
members of the Company.

Procedures for election of directors of the
Company

The procedures for the shareholders of the Company
to propose a person for election as a director of the
Company are available and accessible on the Company’s
website at www.cre987.com.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Board believes regular and timely communication with
shareholders forms part of the Group’s effort to help our
shareholders understand our business better. Copies of
the annual reports and interim reports of the Company are
distributed to its shareholders in accordance with statutory
and regulatory requirements and also to interested parties
recorded in the Company’s mailing lists. The publications
of the Company, including financial reports, circulars and
announcements, are also available on the Company’s website
at www.cre987.com.

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with the shareholders. At the general
meeting, each substantially separate issue is considered by a
separate resolution, including election of individual directors,
and the poll procedures are clearly explained. The Chairman
and CEO, other members of the Board, the Chairmen of the
relevant Board Committees and the external auditor of the
Company attended the annual general meeting to interface
with, and answer questions from the shareholders of the
Company.

Shareholders can send their enquiry to the Board by the
following ways:

Post 9/F., Tower 1, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong

E-mail info@cre987.com

Fax . (852) 2722 1323

32 China Renewable Energy Investment Limited |

ERRZBHE

ExeiE THMERERRBERANEBRN
IR EERATHRAEBMESR 2EE—IR -
RABRRBEPI REERTE » MBREZINARD
ABEREFIABALTEADRFERNF
¥ERE - AR ZHM(BREFIERS - BE
KAfm) » IR R BB www.cre987.coma] fit

ARAHAARRAERERRBBZRIFRE -
RERARE L - FEAERNERGUBIIRESR
ARERE  BREEENES  ARFANEFE
REBERBRERRZRERF - TERITHAR
EEgHMKE  HHEESZEEIRUREAR
ASMNEZ B ERRBFEAS - BARAR
REemIEERRER -

BRRAEBATREREZTGR LM

B2y D BB B E R M E 755
mER D —H LI

T ES : info@cre987.com

BE : (852) 2722 1323

Annual Report 2015



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEE

Mr. OEI Kang, Eric

(Executive Director, Chairman & Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. OEl Kang, Eric, aged 45, has been appointed as Executive
Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
since 10 April 2008. He also holds several directorships in
other members of the Group and the chairman of the Executive
Committee of the Company. Mr. OEl was educated in the USA
and obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Economics (with a minor
in Electrical Engineering), and a Master's Degree in Business
Administration. Earlier in his career, he worked with Peregrine
Securities Ltd. and PCCW Limited in Hong Kong, the LG Group
in Seoul and McKinsey & Co. in Los Angeles, USA. Mr. OEl is
currently an Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
HKC (Holdings) Limited (“HKC”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “HKC Group”), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and the controlling shareholder of the Company. He
is also a director of certain subsidiaries of HKC. Mr. OEl is also
a director and a shareholder of Claudio Holdings Limited, the
controlling shareholder of HKC.

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel

(Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel, aged 52, has been appointed
as Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of the
Company since 1 December 2008. He joined the Group in April
2008 as Qualified Accountant of the Company. He also holds
several directorships in other members of the Group and is
a member of the Executive Committee of the Company. Mr.
LEUNG has been appointed as Executive Director of HKC since
1 September 2015. He is currently the Chief Financial Officer
of HKC and also a director of certain subsidiaries of HKC. Mr.
LEUNG is a certified practising accountant of CPA Australia.
Mr. LEUNG obtained a Master’s Degree in Business from RMIT
University of Australia. He has over 20 years’ experience in
auditing and finance management with an international audit
firm and other major conglomerates in Hong Kong. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. LEUNG was a director of internal control
and risk management of HKC.
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Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy

(Executive Director)

Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy, aged 55, has been appointed
as Executive Director of the Company since 1 January 2014.
He has been instrumental in raising funds for the Group. Mr.
WONG is the Investor Relations Director of the Group, and is
currently serving as a member of the Executive Committee
of the Company. He is also a Director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Since 2007, Mr. WONG has joined HKC, and is
an Executive Director of HKC. He also serves as a Director of
certain subsidiaries of the HKC Group.

Mr. WONG received a Bachelor’'s degree in the geophysical
sciences from the University of Chicago and an MBA from
the Yale School of Management. Before Yale, he worked as a
petroleum geologist at Sohio Petroleum. After Yale, Mr. WONG
became an investment banker at Kidder, Peabody in New
York, where he was involved in project finance. He moved to
Hong Kong with Bear Stearns, and was involved in a variety of
corporate finance activities, including some of the first H share
IPOs out of China. Mr. WONG then worked in equity research at
Societe Generale where he was in charge of the research efforts
in Shanghai; and later as vice President and head of China
Research at Credit Suisse in Hong Kong. Before joining HKC,
Mr. WONG served as a Chief Financial Officer for DVN Holdings
Limited (now known as “Frontier Services Group Limited”),
where he was involved in fund raising and introducing strategic
investors to the company.
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Mr. YU Hon To, David

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. YU Hon To, David, aged 67, has been appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
10 April 2008. He is also a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. YU is a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has extensive experience in the
fields of auditing, corporate finance, financial investigation
and corporate management. He was formerly a partner of an
international accounting firm.

Mr. YU is currently an independent non-executive director of
the following companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, namely China Resources Gas Group Limited (stock
code: 1193), Great China Holdings Limited (stock code: 141),
Haier Electronics Group Co., Ltd. (stock code: 1169), Keck
Seng Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (stock code: 184),
Media Chinese International Limited (which is also listed in
Malaysia; Hong Kong stock code: 685, Malaysia stock code:
5090), One Media Group Limited (stock code: 426), Playmates
Holdings Limited (stock code: 635), Bracell Limited (formerly
known as “Sateri Holdings Limited”) (stock code: 1768) and
Synergis Holdings Limited (stock code: 2340). Mr. YU is also
an independent non-executive director of New Century Asset
Management Limited, the manager of New Century Real Estate
Investment Trust (stock code: 1275), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. YU was an independent non-executive director of China
Datang Corporation Renewable Power Co., Limited (stock code:
1798) and VXL Capital Limited (stock code: 727) (now known
as “Crown International Corporation Limited”) (both companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange) and TeleEye
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the GEM Board of the
Stock Exchange; stock code: 8051).
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Mr. TIAN Yuchuan

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. TIAN Yuchuan, aged 51, has been appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
23 April 2013. He is also a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company. He holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from Beijing
Foreign Studies University. Mr. TIAN also obtained an executive
education program certificate from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Management in 2009 and completed a program in
leadership and public policy at University of Oxford in 2012.
He has over 30 years of experience in multinational business,
corporate management, international equity investment and
corporate finance. Mr. TIAN is the executive director and chief
executive officer of CITIC Dameng Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1091), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He also held senior positions in several subsidiaries
of CITIC Group between 1986 and 2004. Mr. TIAN was
employed as the Senior Vice President, Corporate Strategy and
Development and served as a director of some subsidiaries of
HKC between April 2006 to March 2008.

Mr. ZHANG Songyi

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. ZHANG Songyi, aged 60, has been appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 1
January 2016. He obtained a Juris Doctor degree from Yale
University in 1985. Mr. ZHANG currently serves in senior
management and advisory capacities in several companies,
including acting as the chairman of Mandra Capital and a
director of SINA Corporation which is a company listed on the
NASDAQ Stock Market. Mr. ZHANG is currently an independent
non-executive director of China Longyuan Power Group
Corporation Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. Mr. ZHANG was previously an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company from April 2008 to April
2013.
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The directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) of China
Renewable Energy Investment Limited (the “Company”) have
pleasure in presenting to shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Principal Activities and Geographical
Analysis of Operations

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activity of the Group is alternative energy business. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries and associated companies
are set out in pages 128 to 130 of the consolidated financial
statements. An analysis of the Group’s performance for the
year ended 31 December 2015 by geographical and business
segments is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on pages 58 to 59.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HKO.2 cents (2014: Nil) per ordinary share for the year ended
31 December 2015 to shareholders whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company on Friday, 3 June
2016. Subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting which will be held
on Thursday, 26 May 2016, the final dividend will be paid on
Thursday, 23 June 2016.

Business Review

Business Risk

As a long term investor-operator in the renewable energy
sector, the Group is subject to Chinese government supportive
policies, climate, economy and other execution risks.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Most of the Group’s assets are in Renminbi. The Group
conducts a majority of its business operations in the PRC. The
major portion of revenue, expenses and debits are denominated
in Renminbi. Fluctuations in the exchange rates of Renminbi
would have limited impact on the Group’s operations.

Compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations

The Group have complied the relevant laws and regulations
during the year.
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Relationships with Employees, Customers
and Suppliers

The Group has a good relationships with its customers which
are the grid companies. Through regular communication
channels, the Group ensure the electricity dispatched can be
invoiced. For the suppliers, they are mainly the maintenance
providers, they provide services to our wind farms to ensure the
safety systems and the wind farms are operating reliably.

Please also refer to pages 8 to 10 for business review on the
Group’s operation and wind farms.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital and Convertible
Preference Shares

Details of movements in the share capital and convertible
preference shares of the Company during the year are set out in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (“Articles of Association”) and
there is no restriction against such rights under the laws of the
Cayman Islands.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 23 and note 31
respectively to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2015, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands (as revised), amounted to HK$1,126.22 million
(2014: HK$1,242.95 million).

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 131 to
132.

Donations
During the year, the Group made no charitable and other
donations (2014: Nil).

38 China Renewable Energy Investment Limited |

EFERAHEREAIEEF

BEF(EWRAERRIER B8
m%%t%ﬁ REEBRENAETERAR
ZopEERNS  REFTZREEHER K
ERBANENSRERE - UMERLE2RHER
[R5 0] 81T ©

HES -
£

%

ﬁ@$ BMEEMANGZEBLEE  TH2H
F8EEZH10E °

M - EERRRE
TR AREINE  BRRREE
AR RN 14 -

HIEER

BRA T AT R B ST R

FA - RNABZBRAR ARG TR ZEEFE
A M B mRME22 -

@%wb\ﬂn*g
RARZ EBERBA([EZ=RMA I EE
BELERREZIRX - MASEHS AN RELHE
FERRRIE R PR & o

R
TR AEERAQAT 2 HEEEBEBD BIER
ARE B TS RER M R 23 R i £ o

] 5 0 R ek 48
&Kﬁxﬁ% AUA (BRI E - AR
:%f£$+:ﬂz+f527ﬁ“&ﬁﬁ%
1,126,220,000/& 7T (= F — 4 : 1,242,950,000
ABIT)

EFHBEHME
AEBBERABAVHREFEZEEUREERER
MEHNEIB1EEZFE132H -

B
FRAEBYRERBEERAGER(ZT
—pu% ) -

Annual Report 2015



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEE#fLE =

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy

Non-executive Director

Mr. WANG Sing
(with Mr. HUNG Leung as his alternate)
(both resigned on 22 October 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. YU Hon To, David

Mr. TIAN Yuchuan

Mr. ZHANG Songyi (appointed on 1 January 2016)

Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest (resigned on 1 January 2016)

Mr. WANG Sing resigned on 22 October 2015 as Non-executive
Director and Mr. HUNG Leung resigned as his alternate on the
same day. Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest resigned on 1 January
2016 as Independent Non-executive Director. They have
confirmed that they have no disagreement with the Board and
nothing relating to the affairs of the Company needed to be
brought to the attention of the shareholders of the Company.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
("“AGM"), Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy and Mr. TIAN
Yuchuan will retire from office by rotation in accordance with
Article 85 of the Articles of Association and being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election to serve for another term.
Further, Mr. ZHANG Songyi, who was newly appointed by
the Board on 1 January 2016, will also retire from office in
accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association and will
offer himself for re-election as director of the Company.

The Company has received from each Independent
Non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
the Company considers all of them to be independent.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Share Option Schemes

Share options of the Company

The Company’s existing share option scheme was adopted on
27 May 2008 (the “CRE Option Scheme”). Particulars of the CRE
Option Scheme are set out below:

(@) Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high
calibre Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group or
any entity in which any member of the Group holds an
equity interest (“Invested Entity” or “Invested Entities”),
to recognise the significant contributions of the Eligible
Persons to the growth of the Group or Invested Entities
by rewarding them with opportunities to obtain ownership
interest in the Company and to further motivate and
give incentives to these Eligible Persons to continue to
contribute to the long term success and prosperity of the
Group or Invested Entities.

(b) Eligible Persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
director) or consultant of any members of the Group or any
Invested Entity who, in the sole discretion of the Board,
have contributed or will contribute to the growth and
development of the Group or any Invested Entity.

(¢) Maximum number of shares available for issue
The total number of shares of the Company available for
issue under the CRE Option Scheme is 76,353,475 shares
which represent 3.24% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this Annual Report.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person
The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised or
outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue; and

(ii) a substantial shareholder or an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company must not exceed
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and not
exceed HK$5 million in aggregate value.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share options of the Company (continued)

(e) Period within which the shares must be taken up

under an option

An option must be exercised within ten years from the date
on which it is granted or such shorter period as the Board

may specify at the time of grant.

(f) Minimum period, if any, for which an option must

be held

At the time of the grant of an option, the Board must
specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which an option

must be held before it can be exercised.

(g) Period open for acceptance of an option and
amount payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of ten business days from the
date of offer and a consideration of HK$1.0 must be paid

upon acceptance.

(h) Basis of determining the subscription price of an

option

The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant;
(ii) the average closing prices of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;

and (iii) the nominal value of a share.

(i) Remaining life

CRE Option Scheme has a life of ten years and will
expire on 27 May 2018 unless otherwise terminated in

accordance with the terms of the CRE Option Scheme.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Share options of the Company (continued)
Movements of share options granted under the CRE Option
Scheme during the year are as follows:

fERR TSl

ARz BRE®E)

4P AR5 R 7 A RO AR 5T B9 0 BRI
W2 BBHENT

Number of share options
BRELE
Outstanding Outstanding Exercise
at at price
1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name Nature of interest 215 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2015 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
R-%-1f RN-%-1f 8k
-A-H Bi#/ 2Rzt kg
4 EHtE HATTE ERH B g BAY  HAGE  RHBH 8 (&7
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Personal 1,375,000 - - (1,375,000) - 20 January 2010 20 January 2013 1o 0.764
Samuel (Director) fAA “E-FE-ACFR 19 Janvary 2015
PRt (ES) “3-=§-R-1RE
“E-1E-AtAR
Total &t 1,375,000 = - (1,375,000 =

Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted,
exercised, cancelled nor lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2015 under the CRE Option Scheme.

Share options of associated corporation of
the Company

The existing share option scheme of HKC (Holdings) Limited
(“HKC”) was adopted on 16 June 2006 (the “HKC Option
Scheme”). Particulars of the HKC Option Scheme are set out
below:

(@) Purpose

The principal purposes are to recruit and retain high
caliber Eligible Persons (as defined below) and attract
human resources that are valuable to HKC and its
subsidiaries (the “HKC Group”) or any entity in which
any member of the HKC Group holds an equity interest
(“Invested Entity” or “Invested Entities”), to recognise
the significant contributions of the Eligible Persons to the
growth of the HKC Group or Invested Entities by rewarding
them with opportunities to obtain ownership interest in
HKC and to further motivate and give incentives to these
Eligible Persons to continue to contribute to the long term
success and prosperity of the HKC Group or Invested
Entities.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share options of associated corporation of
the Company (continued)

(b) Eligible Persons

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, director (including
independent non-executive director) or consultant of any
members of the HKC Group or any Invested Entity who, in
the sole discretion of the HKC board, have contributed or
will contribute to the growth and development of the HKC

Group or any Invested Entity.

(¢) Maximum number of shares available for issue
The total number of shares of HKC available for issue
under the HKC Option Scheme is 799,449,183 shares
which represent approximately 6.05% of the issued share
capital of the HKC as at the date of this Annual Report.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person

The total number of shares of HKC issued and to be
issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised or

outstanding) granted in any 12-month period to:

(i) each Eligible Person must not exceed 1% of the

shares of HKC in issue; and

(i) a substantial shareholder or an Independent
Non-executive Director of HKC must not exceed
0.1% of the shares of HKC in issue and not exceed

HK$5 million in aggregate value.

(e) Period within which the shares must be taken up

under an option

An option must be exercised within ten years from the date
on which it is granted or such shorter period as the board

of HKC may specify at the time of grant.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share options of associated corporation of
the Company (continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

0]

44

Minimum period, if any, for which an option must
be held

At the time of the grant of an option, the board of HKC
must specify the minimum period(s), if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option and
amount payable upon acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 10 business days from the date
of offer and a consideration of HK$1.0 must be paid upon
acceptance.

Basis of determining the subscription price of an
option

The exercise price must be at least the higher of (i) the
closing price of the shares of HKC as stated in daily
quotations sheet on the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing prices of the shares of HKC
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a share of HKC.

Remaining life

The HKC Option Scheme has a life of ten years and will
expire on 16 June 2016 unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the HKC Option Scheme.
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Share Option Schemes (continued)
Share options of associated corporation of

the Company (continued)

Movements of share options granted to the Directors under the

BB 8l

3

7N 2 B AR Bt A B 2 B SRR ()
ER - REESERBRENARTESZER

HKC Option Scheme during the year are as follows: RIS
Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Outstanding Exercise
at at price
1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name of Directors Nature of interest 2015 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2015 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
R-E-1f R-E-E1%
-A-H Bii#/ tzRA=t-B BRITRE
B2ftf BtE HALTE B [BYif:d BAX HAGE RHAH 8 (7
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric Personal 749,757 - - (749,757) - 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
EllLE N ZESAF+ZATRE 14December 2016
ZERtFTCATRAZ
R RETZATER
1,249,596 - - (1,249,596) - 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.066
STTAETCRTRA 14 December 2016
“EEN\ET-ATHRE
ZE-AETZATRA
399,870 - - (399,870) -1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
“EE\E-A-H 31 January 2018
“EENE-R-RBZ
Z2-\§-A=t-R
599,806 - - (599,806) -1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
“TE\5F-8 31 January 2018
“E-%4-f-HE
Z2-\§-A=t-A
999,676 - - (999,676) - 1February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“ET\EZA-R 31 January 2018
“5-—%-f-A%
“2-N\E-A=1-R
2,000,000 - - (2,000,000) - 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 to 0.269
ZE-=FMmAtEA 14 April 2016
“Z-NEMATRAZ
ZZ-NERATEA
3,000,000 - - (3,000,000) - 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 to 0.269
“Z-ZEMATRA 14 April 2017
“Z-15mATRAZ
ZZ-t¥MATREA
5,000,000 - - (5,000,000) - 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 0.269
“Z-=EMAtEA 14 April 2018
ZZ-NERATRRE
ZT-\fRATEA
PEBAERREERAR | —E-HFFR 45
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Share options of associated corporation of RABIEEEB 2 BRE &
the Company (continued)
Number of share options
BREYR
Outstanding Outstanding Exercise
at at price
1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name of Directors Nature of interest 2015 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2015 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
R=%-1% R=2-1f
-B-8 Bii#/ tZA=t-B BRTEE
] BEtE HATTE B [BXitd BAX HATE RHAH 8 (#7)
Mr. OEI Kang, Eric Family 749,757 - - (749,757) - 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1.066
(continued) P33 “EERET-ATRER 14 December 2016
&Rt (8) “STHFT-ATEAR
ZENETZATRA
1,249,596 - - (1,249,5%) - 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.066
ZETAF+ZATRE 14December 2016
“EE\FtoATRAZ
B RETZATEA
399,870 - - (399,870) -1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
“ET\EZA-H 31 January 2018
ZEINFCR-HE
“F-N\E-A=1-R
599,806 - - (599,806) -1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
“ZE5\E-A-H 31 January 2018
ZB-RF_f-BE
Z2-\§-A=t-8
999,676 - - (999,676) -1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“TE\EZF-H 31 January 2018
“%--%-f-HE
Z2-\§-A=t-A
1,000,000 = - (1,000,000) ~ 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 1o 0269
~E-=E£MAtRA 14 April 2016
ZZ-PMEMATRRE
ZE-NERATRA
1,500,000 - - (1,500,000) - 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 1o 0.269
“T-ZERATERA 14 April 2017
“Z-1%¥MATRAZ
ZZ-+EMATEA
2,500,000 - - (2,500,000 - 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 0.269
“E-ZEmATEA 14 April 2018
ZZ-~ENATRAR
ZZ-\§BATREA
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Share Option Schemes (continued) BRELTE e
Share options of associated corporation of AATHEBLIE 2 BRE®E
the Company (continued)

Number of share options
BREHR
Outstanding Outstanding Exercise
at at price
1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name of Directors Nature of interest 2015 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2015 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
R-%-1f R-E-1%
-A-B Bi#/ toRA=t-B BRITEE
Bsftg BEtY WA B BiTR B4R HAGE REAH L] (Br
Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Personal 1,599,484 - - (1,599,484) - 15 December 2006 15 December 2007 to 1,066
Samuel A “E3RF+ATRE 14December 2016
RRRRE “EEtFtCATRAZ
ZE2-RETZATRE
2,665,807 - - (2,665,807) - 15 December 2006 15 December 2008 to 1.066
“EZREFATEE 14December 2016
ZEF\F+ZATRAE
ZR-NETZATRA
533,160 - - (533,160) -1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
“T5\EF-H 31 January 2018
ZEENFZA-BE
Z2-\§-A=t-A
799,741 - - (799,741) - 1February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
“ET\EZA-H 31 January 2018
“5-%5-f-H%
“2-N\F-A=1-H
1,332,903 - - (1,332,903 - 1February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“ZZ\E-A-H 31 January 2018
“3-—-FZf-HE
Z2-\§-A=t-8
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Personal 6,664,518 = = (6,664,518) - 3July 2007 15 December 2007 to 1.726
Sammy A “T5tECR=A 2 July 2017
EHEREE “ERtFtCATRAZ
S S
3,332,259 - - (3332259 - 3July 2007 15 December 2008 to 1726
“ZSHELAZA 2July 2017
“T3\FtZATRAZ
“2-tFtACA
3,332,259 - - (3332259 - 3July 2007 15 December 2009 to 1726
“ERtELAZH 2July 2017
ZEENFT-ATRAZ
ZE-tErACH
1,332,903 - - (1,332,903) -1 February 2008 1 February 2009 to 1.242
“T5\EZF-H 31 January 2018
ZEENFZA-BE
Z2-\§-A=t-A
REEARRREERAR | B AEFR A7
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Share Option Schemes (continued)

Directors, exercised, cancelled nor lapsed by the Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2015 under the HKC
Option Scheme.
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Share options of associated corporation of AN B AR EE S EYE A
the Company (continued)
Number of share options
RREHE
Outstanding Outstanding Exercise
at at price
1 January Cancelled/ 31 December per share
Name of Directors Nature of interest 2015 Granted Exercised Lapsed 2015 Date of grant Exercise period (HKS)
W-%-1% R-E-1%
-B-B Bi#/ toRA=t-B SRR
Bsft? BENE HALTE B BiTR B4R HATE HLAH L] ()
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Personal 1,999,354 - - (1999,354) - 1 February 2008 1 February 2010 to 1.242
Sammy (continued) fEA “ET\EZA-R 31 January 2018
EEREE(E) “5-%5-f-H%
“2-N\F-A=1-H
3,332,259 - - (3,332,259) -1 February 2008 1 February 2011 to 1.242
“ZZ\E-A-H 31 January 2018
“3--FZf-HE
Z2-\§-A=t-8
1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - - 15 April 2013 15 April 2014 to 0.269
“E3-ZENATERA 14 April 2016
“Z-MEMATRAR
ZZ- FBATEA
1,500,000 - (1,500,000) - - 15 April 2013 15 April 2015 1o 0.269
“E-ZEPAtEA 14 April 2017
“Z-1EMATRRE
“2-t5mARA
2,500,000 - - (2,500,000) - 15 April 2013 15 April 2016 to 0.269
ZT-ZERATERA 14 April 2018
“E- ¥MATRAZ
“Z-N\FEATEA
Total #: 54,922,057 - (25000000 (52422,057) s
Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted to the g Fx#EEH  RNEBE-—ZET—FAF+ - 8

ST HLEFE FEEERALEBEREFTEEZR
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Directors’ Interests in Securities

At 31 December 2015, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the

Securities

and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in

the register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by

Directors

of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules adopted by the Company were

as follows:

(i) Long positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company:

E%F%%Z%E
“E-RFTA=1T—RH KEERALQA
Exﬁﬂl/\é\ﬁ/\\zﬁ Bl EAL(AARMAE (&
REHFLBMEGEO(TESFRBEERGI ) EXVER)
ZBn - BB REFTHEEYCRERAR
T*Ebzm%&ﬁﬂiﬂlﬂﬁﬂ%%zﬂﬁﬁ ATIFEZ
BrMzEa AR REREBARAAEAE
EM:m%E 'Jﬁﬁ‘ﬁ“i—ﬁfﬁi?ﬁ%’* TAESRETES
RHRESTA(RESTR D ZREMNEART]
ﬁ’ﬁ?éﬁﬁZ%ﬁﬁ&w%ﬁDT :

(i) REAFARGREERD 2T

Number of Approximate
shares and percentage of
underlying existing issued
shares of  share capital of
Name of Directors Nature of interest the Company the Company
LERN
ERARG K RECBTRAE
EEsA Ml HER G A BABED L
Mr. OEl Kang, Eric Corporate! 1,702,525,811 72.252
=ML NG 26,899,439 1.142

Joint?

$H[F?

Notes: Mt -

1. Since as at 31 December 2015, HKC was held as to approximately 1. RZZT—RF+ZA=+—H0 HREBERH

hEIBLRE

63.532% by Claudio Holdings Limited (“Claudio”) (via its wholly-
owned subsidiaries, Creator Holdings Limited (“Creator”) and
Genesis Capital Group Limited (“Genesis”)), a company owned as
to 50% by Mr. OEl Kang, Eric and as to the remaining 50% by his
wife, Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau, Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of shares of the Company in which
HKC is interested. The corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric
includes (i) an interest in 1,275,540,924 shares of the Company
held by HKC; (ii) an interest in 150,918,990 shares of the Company
held by Creator; and (iii) an interest in 276,065,897 shares of the
Company held by Genesis.

The joint interest of Mr. OEI Kang, Eric represents an interest
in 26,899,439 shares of the Company jointly held with his wife,
Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau.

RIRBERRRA | —hEFR

Claudio Holdings Limited ([ Claudio]) & #)
63.532% (CBAEZEMBARBIEERBRA
AI(TaEE ) REAISEBRARTEE]) - M@
ClaudioFB & il 5e £ # B 50% + S8 T50% A&
BrETRELLHA  HERMTEERAR
EREERRERERZA—HARAAROPES
i - FREAEZ RRESEBRIEG) B BRI
1,275,540,924 A A RIS © (i) Bl AT
150,918,990/ AN R A1 AR (D 25 ¢ R (iii) EAIFTHE
276,065,897 B Bk )t 7w ©

2. BN EZ HRAEZERFERF 2 ZFEEL+
HEHA 226,899,439 AR BIILDHERS ©
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Directors’ Interests in Securities

(continued)

(ii) Long positions in the shares and
underlying shares of associated
corporation of the Company:

EERNESF2ER®)
(i) AADREEEE RO REER
BREFE -

Number of Approximate
shares and percentage of
underlying existing issued

Name of shares of the share capital of

associated Nature of associated the associated

corporation Name of Directors interest corporation corporation
EEBEE
MHEEE 2R BREC#ITRE

MECEE S8 Y s REERGEAE BROED

HKC Mr. OEl Kang, Eric Corporate! 8,399,498,497 63.532

BEBER ERIEE NG

Joint? 201,074,696 1.521
K2
Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy Personal® 2,500,000 0.019
BER%E A3

Notes: Hiat -

1. The corporate interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents (i) an 1. EMLEEZAREZEOAERNE Z
interest in 4,819,185,212 shares of HKC held by Creator; and (ii) 4,819,185 212X BB B R ALMDHERS + R(i)FERIFT
an interest in 3,580,313,285 shares of HKC held by Genesis. Both $%5.2.3,580,313,285A% F A RA D HERS o BlER
Creator and Genesis are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Claudio, a F A AClaudioz 2 &M B /A7) * MClaudiod
company owned as to 50% by Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric and as to the EMEEEES0% @ 2 T50%A|REzEZEFRE
remaining 50% by his wife, Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau. LR -

504,134,682 shares out of 4,819,185,212 shares of HKC held by REER - BIEFTHE4,819,185, 212 R &2

Creator and 582,980,881 shares out of 3,580,313,285 shares of HKC BA D B 504,134,682 X 1D R EAIFiiF A

held by Genesis were converted from warrants of HKC (warrant 3,580,313,285/8 & /B @ % IX 10 1 #9582,980,88 1

code:1403) (the “HKC Warrants”) during the year. All the HKC BRI iR B E BN RIREE (RIREER

Warrants expired at 4:00 pm on Thursday, 15 October 2015. 8% 0 1403) ([ BB ERZREE]) - IBEEFHE
RAREBEHER -F-BF+ATHR(2H
P9 ) N4 e IE B ET o

2. The joint interest of Mr. OEl Kang, Eric represents an interest in 2. EHH A HAESEEREGE I EFYE L+ H
201,074,696 shares of HKC jointly held with his wife, Mrs. OEI Fl¥H 2201,074,696 8 F B R MD R (K
Valonia Lau (47,784,950 shares out of which were converted from 47,784,950 M IR A FEENEHR B BEE
the HKC Warrants during the year). RIS o

3. The personal interest of Mr. WONG Jake Leong, Sammy represents 3. EHER AL ZEAAREZIER 2,500,000 F & 12
an interest in 2,500,000 shares of HKC (all of which were acquired BB ER(REEEARAFEERNITEEBE
through exercise of share options under the HKC Option Scheme REBICRECTZITE T 2 BB -
during the year).

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the B X EEI RAREERNTMAER - AQ

Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries, its parent
company or its other associated corporations a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors and chief executives of the
Company (including their spouse and children under 18 years
of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
specified undertakings or other associated corporation.
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

Save as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ Interests in
Securities” above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement that
enabled the Directors or any of their spouses or children under
the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Businesses

Mr. OEIl Kang, Eric, Mr. LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel and Mr.
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy are executive directors of HKC.
One of the business activities of the HKC Group is alternative
energy business in the PRC. Apart from the Company’s
business, HKC Group has an interest in a business in ethanol
energy business in the PRC. Having considered that HKC’s
investment in the ethanol energy business is non-core and the
business is dormant at present, the Company can operate its
business independently.

Mr. WANG Sing (resigned on 22 October 2015) is a partner
of TPG. TPG has an interest in Comtec Solar Systems Group
Limited (Stock Code: 712) which is engaged in alternative
energy business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their
respective associate(s) was interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group during the year.

Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’
Interests in Contracts of Significance
Save as disclosed in note 24 “Bank borrowings” and note
28 “Related party transactions” to the consolidated financial
statements, the transactions with HKC and its subsidiaries
and in which Mr. OEI Kang, Eric was interested, no contract of
significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or
at any time during the year.

TEBLRRKREARAT | —T-RFFR

EERERODIES 2ER

BREXTESRES <t | —HWEEIN - RNF
AR - ARESEEAMBRRMERT T
ALY BEESFREEFS A ZEBI8EIA
TZFRAZEBARNRRREMEMEAEREZ
Bt S fE 7 m ek o

ESERFRB RS

BRIEE  RERELELFERAEERBTEER
ZHTEE - BREREBEP —EEB/ET
BREERERER - RTARBZEHI
EEEREENTREZ EREGES X5
@ KERBBRRIFLREZLEBRRERL
FIZLET - BBRMER B AL EEE - AR
BRI BLEE -

IMEER_ZE-AF+A-T-HEE)R
TPGZEBA - TPGRRBARABERREE
BERAR(RMMRSE : 712) AR - ZREIR
EEREEIREL -

REXHBEEN  FAMBESAREEA 2B
BATREREENRGE R A REBREATEE
BB 2 EAEBHEA#ER -

EERERREREASH
x5

iR G MR MR M 24 [SRITER I KM E28 [ B
BMAIRS IMREE BEEEZRREMNBLAA
AREREENETREREDE X5 ARF
KETAMNBARBE LEAESRETER
SEEFEEEAED MR FEERTANAEF
EREAEEFENERGL -

51



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEE&#fL =

e

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in
Securities

As at 31 December 2015, the following persons (other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company

A T

T,
",,/”‘{f:?.‘;’
oy
e

FTERRREZ 2R

RZZF-—RAFtT-A=1t—H REAQXFRERE
R ERPIFIB IR TATFEZERLMAT
L U PAL(BSEHARBEZTRAER
SMRAR B Z Bty KRR o B R aE TOR

A

B

RARBRGEAEBRGD ZHFR

Number of Approximate
shares and percentage of the
underlying existing issued
shares of the  share capital of

Name Nature of interest Company the Company
EELARRE
ARG R 2 BITRA
wE S ERB ERMEE HERGEE BABE D
HKC Beneficial owner? 1,275,540,924 54.132
BEER EmEAA
Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau Family? 1,702,525,811 72.252
BNEx+ ER
Joint® 26,899,439 1.142
eI
Claudio Corporate* 1,702,525,811 72.252
NSIR
Genesis Corporate® 276,065,897 11.716
%8l AR
Creator Corporate® 150,918,990 6.405
gl NS
Notes: et -

1.

52

The beneficial interest of HKC includes an interest in 1,275,540,924 shares
of the Company held by HKC.

Mrs. OEI Valonia Lau is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
shares of the Company in which Mr. OEl Kang, Eric is taken to be interested
(as detailed in “Directors’ Interests in Securities” section above).

The joint interest of Mrs. OEl Valonia Lau represents an interest in
26,899,439 shares of the Company jointly held with Mr. OEI Kang, Eric.

Claudio is beneficially interested in 63.532% of the issued share capital of
HKC (via its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Creator and Genesis) and thus,
is deemed to be interested in the same parcel of shares of the Company
in which HKC is interested. In addition, as Creator and Genesis are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Claudio, and thus, Claudio is deemed to be
interested in the same parcel of shares of the Company in which Creator
and Genesis are interested.

The corporate interest of Genesis includes an interest in 276,065,897
shares of the Company.

The corporate interest of Creator includes an interest in 150,918,990 shares
of the Company.

1. BERER B R BERBERIFHE 21,275,540,924
AR A BIRRD #E RS o

2. BRI RAREREEREFRERE IR 4R
REENTHEEERD (FE2RLEX [EFNEF 2

] —&f) e

3. 2 ut o HARSKEERZANTEARESZ
26,899,439/ AN B ik fh fEw= o

4. ClaudioEm A BB RZREEITIRA 263.632% 5
(EREZEMBARAEREL) H AUBEAR
ERERREREGZA-—HARAROPHEAER -
Uboh - AR EIE R EAIRClaudioz 2 BB AR -
It Claudio# R AR AIERELEAEm 2 F—HA
AR A -

b

&
R

A2 AR BE276,065,897 AN AR HER o

6. BlE 2 A EIEZBE150,918,990 A X AR {5 fERs o
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in

Securities (continued)

Long positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company (continued)

Save as disclosed above, at 31 December 2015, the Company
had not been notified by any person, other than Directors and
chief executive of the Company, who had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which are required to record in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed shares during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

Off-market Share Buy-back of
Preference Shares

On 24 July 2015, the Company entered into a share buy-back
agreement (the “Share Buy-back Agreement”) with STAR
Butterfly Energy, Ltd. (“STAR Butterfly”) to buy-back the
300,000,000 preference shares of the Company (each a
“Buy-back Share” and collectively the “Buy-back Shares”)
legally and beneficially owned by STAR Butterfly (the “Share
Buy-back”). The total consideration for the Buy-back Shares
was HK$93,900,000. Details of the Share Buy-back were set out
in the circular of the Company dated 28 August 2015.

The Share Buy-back Agreement was approved by the
shareholders of the Company, other than STAR Butterfly and
parties acting in concert with it, at an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 9 October 2015. The Share
Buy-back was then completed on 22 October 2015. All
conditions to the Share Buy-back had been fulfilled and the
Company purchased the Buy-back Shares from STAR Butterfly
at the buy-back price of HK$0.313 per Buy-back Share. The
Buy-back Shares has been cancelled and no more preference
shares of the Company are in issue.

Financial Assistance and Guarantee to
Affiliated Companies

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has provided financial
assistance to, and guarantee for, an affiliated company in the
amount of HK$127 million, which represented approximately 6%
of the Group’s total assets value as at 31 December 2015.

TEBLRRKREARAT | —T-RFFR

TERRREF 2w a)
RARBRGRAEBRD 25 = (&)

BREXEKEEN  RZE—AF+A=+—
B ARALTEETAAL(EESRARAEE
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%
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2N EBE TR

RZZE-—RFLtHAZ+HMHE - AR FESTAR
Butterfly Energy, Ltd.([ STAR Butterfly ]) 5] 32
R EERE (RO EERZE]) - LEESTAR
Butterfly & )% & # # A #7300,000,000 & A~ A &
BER(ZATRIBRM I RGREREBRM ] (TR
HEE]) - BERG 28R EA93,900,000%F
T BERMEBZFBRANARRBHAZT
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B ER - BARRIRSIREERH0.3137%5
T2 BB ASTAR Butterfly B BB - @
BRHOE FUFEHE - BARFBRILEDETE
FoR% o

E%EQEE&M%ﬁ%&%

RZE—RFE+_A=+—8 KXEFHA—
BB RARIRHYBEDRER  BEELY
127,000,000 7T ' HERAKSER _ZT—AF
T A=+ —BZEERENEY -
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Management Contract

Apart from those disclosed under the heading “Related
Party Transactions” in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentages of the Group’s purchases and sales for the
year attributable to its major suppliers and customers are as
follows:

Purchases

The largest supplier 34%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 75%
Sales

During the year, the Group had two customers only and the
percentages of the Group’s sales attributable to the major
customers are as follows:

The largest customer 70%
The remaining customer 30%

None of the Directors, any of their associates, or shareholders
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group’s customers noted above.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 13 to 32.

Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specified
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Group are also subject to compliance
with guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code.
A Code for Securities Dealings by Employees has also been
adopted in this regard.

Retirement Benefits Schemes

Information on the Group’s retirement benefits schemes is set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of more than
25% of the Company’s issued shares as required under the
Listing Rules.
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Permitted Indemnity Provisions

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, every
Director and other officers of the Company shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise
in relation thereto, provided that the indemnity shall not extend
to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to any of said persons. The Company has arranged
appropriate liability insurance to indemnify the Group’s
Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.
The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Review of the Annual Report by Audit
Committee

The audit committee of the Company currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors with written terms of
reference in accordance with the requirements of the Listing
Rules, and reports to the Board.

The audit committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution
for the re-appointment of Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the AGM.

Update on Directors’ Information

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, change in the
information of the Directors since the date of the 2015 Interim
Report is set out below:

Mr. YU Hon To, David

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. YU resigned as a director of MCL Financial Group Ltd with
effect from 10 December 2015.

Mr. ZHANG Songyi

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. ZHANG was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 1 January 2016.

Mr. TANG Siu Kui, Ernest

(Independent Non-executive Director)

Mr. TANG was resigned as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 1 January 2016.

On behalf of the Board
China Renewable Energy Investment Limited
OEIl Kang, Eric

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

HONG KONG, 22 MARCH 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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i
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RENEWABLE ENERGY
INVESTMENT LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Renewable Energy Investment Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries set out on pages 58 to 130, which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2015,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e EH WA RR

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE_Z—RFT-A=+—HILEE

2015 2014
—E-HF —F-@mOF
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
hy=a FHET FABTT

Revenue g 5 132,919 97,334
Cost of sales SHE AR 6 (88,645) (78,331)
Gross profit EF 44,274 24,003
Other gains/(losses), net HEmuezs (&8 ) %58 7 22 (1,029)
Administrative expenses THER 6 (23,620) (21,462)
Operating profit P Pig| 20,676 1,512
Finance income U A 8 6,583 5,319
Finance costs B R AN 8 (43,154) (37,070)
Finance costs — net LA AN — 55 8 (36,571) (31,751)
Fair value gain on derivative liability MTETABB A FERS - 46
Share of profits less losses of JFE{G B = R )

associated companies i KRB 1B 18 60,916 45,076
Profit before income tax RSBt A= R 45,021 14,883
Income tax expense FTiSHi% 11 (5,669) (1,922)
Profit for the year RNEEEA 39,352 12,961
Other comprehensive loss: Hith 2 EEE :
ltems that may be reclassified AIRHEBERSBEEER

subsequently to profit or loss ZIEE

Currency translation differences HEHIREEEE (94,478) (41,238)

Release of exchange reserve upon = — B A B RS

disposal of an associated company T2 B 5 (R - (4,236)

Other comprehensive loss AEEHMEEESE

for the year, net of tax HERBE ___(94,478) (45,474)
Total comprehensive loss AFEETHEEBEHE

for the year (55,126) (32,513)
Profit attributable to: BT e EF
Equity holders of the Company RATIERFB A 40,454 14,462
Non-controlling interests FEPE R (1,102) (1,501)

39,352 12,961
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-ZT—FF+-A=1+—HBLLFE

REZTEBARRE

2015 2014
—E-HF —F-@mOF
Note HK$'000 HK$’000
M=t THET FABTT
Total comprehensive loss QTEE2HEEEARE !
attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company VAN EE SN (54,060) (30,816)
Non-controlling interests SRR A (1,066) (1,697)
(55,126) (32,513)
Earnings per share attributable to AARERIFEA
equity holders of the Company EhERER
(expressed in HK cents per share) (B RAEWFIR)
Basic earnings per share BRERBF 12(a) 1.72 0.61
Diluted earnings per share BREERF 12(b) 1.56 0.53
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SeEESER

As at 31 December 2015
RZZE—RFE+=A=+—H

2015 2014
—B-hfF —ZT—mEF
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
B aE FET FABTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - R R 14 1,039,197 1,177,283
Construction in progress EEITRE 15 1,055 500
Prepaid land lease payments TR+ A S RRIB 16 13,937 15,934
Intangible assets EREE 17 4,718 5,448
Prepayments and other receivables TE - 3038 Je H A GR 19 22,719 23,637
Interests in associated companies RERE R ]2 18 923,940 965,691
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 2,005,566 2,188,493
Current assets REBEE
Inventory 58 5,920 6,157
Trade and other receivables JFEE LT B 35K R L UK 19 65,674 103,944
Short-term bank deposit RHERITE R 20 4,269 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeFEY 21 181,250 278,271
Total current assets REEEAE _ 257,113 388372
Total assets EEHAE 2,262,679 2,576,865
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to  AQFEZTE AELRA
equity holders of the Company E#E
Share capital [N 22 23,564 26,564
Reserves 1 23 1,583,123 1,730,951
Equity attributable to equity holders A REZFE AELER
of the Company 1,606,687 1,757,515
Non-controlling interests FEERER 279 1,345
Total equity QB 1,606,966 1,758,860
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

As at 31 December 2015
RZZE—RFE+=A=+—H

REEERER

2015 2014
—E—RF —ZE—F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mo FHET FET
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities kREBEE
Bank borrowings RITIE 24 471,874 589,892
Deferred income tax liabilities BEFSIHAE 25 33,072 34,078
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBEEARE _ 504,946 623,970
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables JE A3 AR 3k B EL A A5 3R 26 65,911 104,124
Current portion of bank borrowings RITIEFRENERED 5 24 84,856 89,911
Total current liabilities BB EAE _ 150,767 = 194,085
Total liabilities =Lt b o] 655,713 818,005
Total equity and liabilities EERkaEAE 2,262,679 2,576,865
OEIl Kang, Eric LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel
=i PR
Director Director
EF 2
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
meEn S ER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-ZT—FF+-A=1+—HBLLFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARRREREAER
Employee
share-hased Non-
Share Share  Exchange compensation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  earnings Total interests equity
E8Rkf
Bx  RHEE EifG  REEGE  REEA A% FERES  EREE
HK$000  HK§000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000 HK$000
ThT Thn T T Thn T Thn T
Balance at 1 January 2014 R-g-mE-f-A2EH 26564 98505 174213 1045 502044 1788331 3042 1791373
Profit for the year REERH - - - - 14,462 14,462 (1,501) 12,961
Other comprehensive loss: B2 EESE:
Currency ranslation differences B BEEE - - (41042) - - (41042 (196)  (41,238)
Release of exchange reserve HE-RBER AN
upon disposal of an associated BILERGE
company - - (4,236) - - (4,236) - (4,236)
Total comprehensive loss rEFRAE - - (45.018) - 1446 (30816)  (1697)  (32513)
Transactions with owners HEEAETZRS
Lapse of employee share EEBRERTAN
option benefits - - - (1428) 1,428 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2014 R-E-METZA=1-A
53 26,564 993,505 128,99 517 607,934 1,757,515 1,345 1,758,860
Balance at 1 January 2015 R-%-TE-A-A2&H 26564 993505 128,995 517 607934 1757515 1,345 1,758,860
Profit for the year AEERF - - - - 40454 40,454 (1,102) 39,352
Other comprehensive loss: E2EER
Currency translation differences ~ ERBEZE - - (94514) - - (%4514 36 (94,478)
Total comprehensive loss PEFELE - - (%4514 - o454 (54,060  (1,066)  (55126)
Transactions with owners BREAETZRS
Buy-back of convertible BEITARELR
preference shares (3,000 (100,600) - - 6,832 (96,768) - (96,768)
Lapse of employee share [ESBRERTIER
aption benefits - - - (517) 517 - - -
Balance at 31 December 2015 R-Z-15+=A=1-H
A 23,564 892,905 34,481 - 655,737 1,606,687 219 1,606,966
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

meaReRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-ZT—FF+-A=1+—HBLLFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—mEF
Note HK$'000 HK$°000
B aE FET FABTT
Cash flows from operating activities & EIEZRERE
Cash generated from operations BEMSRE 29 135,680 73,421
Mainland China taxation paid BT A B K BERE I (4,932) (7,218)
Net cash generated from operating KR EN TS
activities RE T 130,748 66,203
Cash flows from investing activities REEFHHERE
Interest received B2 HF 2 6,771 4,999
Addition to prepayments ANBENRIE (3,947) (2,247)
Purchase of property, BAYIZE - #E R
plant and equipment B (38,970) (90)
Purchase of construction in progress BATEELRE (189) (120,443)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE - HBER
plant and equipment RAEFTS 3RIE 22 389
Proceeds from disposal of & — A2 A B TS 5/ IE
an associated company - 78,716
Increase in short-term bank deposit R HRSRI T SR 00 (4,382) -
Dividends received from associated B & A IR B
companies 49,322 72,190
Net cash generated from KRB EEEH R
investing activities 8,627 L §8_,5_1§
Cash flows from financing activities @BEEBHZHERE
Repayment of bank and other loans EERITREMER (85,975) (71,278)
Repayment of convertible note BEAIRRERE - (93,075)
Redemption convertible & O] AT #R AR B SR AR
preference shares (96,768) -
Proceeds from bank loan IRITE B RIA - 130,677
Interest paid EAfTFIE (43,211) (54,642)
Net cash used in financing activities BVEEEN TR & 55 __ (225,954)  (88,318)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and BERBRESZEY
cash equivalents (R4, /B g (86,579) 11,399
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BZRER
1 January REEEY 278,271 271,050
Effect of foreign exchange rate PE R g g)
changes 2B (10,442) (4,178)
Cash and cash equivalents at Rt+t=-A=+—HB2
31 December RERFESZEEY 181,250 278,271
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R AR M

64

General information

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited (the
“Company” or “CRE”) is an exempted company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability.
The address of the registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) are principally engaged in alternative energy
business. The Group has operations mainly in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The shares of the Company are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock
Exchange”). On 29 January 2015, the ultimate holding
company was changed from HKC (Holdings) Limited
(“HKC"), a company incorporated in Bermuda and listed
in Hong Kong, to Claudio Holdings Limited, an unlisted
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. HKC
has become an intermediate holding company since 29
January 2015.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ thousand
or HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements were approved by the board of
directors of the Company for issue on 22 March 2016.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of China
Renewable Energy Investment Limited have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”).
They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #H&BEHzRMIET

2 FESTHBREEE®)
2.1 RBEE(F)

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

TEBLERREARAR |

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to
the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed
in Note 4.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(a) Amended standards adopted by the Group

HKAS 19 (2011)
(Amendment)

Defined benefit plans:
employee contributions

Annual improvements Annual improvements to
project HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 cycle

Annual improvements Annual improvements to
project HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 cycle

The adoption of the above amendments has
no significant effects on the Group’s financial
information.

In addition, the requirement of Part 9 “Accounts
and Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into operation
during the financial year, as a result, there are
changes to presentation and disclosures of
certain information in the consolidated financial
statements.

—E-—RFEFR

AT ETEVBRE LN ZHBR
RIS BERETEAG AT - &
BEENBHEERASESBRZB
RARELHE - P RBSE AR

BH28E  SOSREEREMBRRE
ERBEBRBEMEFAELE - RHiTE4
HFE o
SHBRREHREE
(a) AEEFRHZLETLEL
BB QR ERE RERHETE
195 (=5 ——%F) EEHH
({BRTAK)
FEEAGEER HAEBIT RS %A
“Z-ZF%
“E-CEFHY
MEE
EEAGEER HABTRE %R
%3
—E-CERH
MEE

R BT A AR KB Z AR
WEEBRZE -

o - FHEECRBEGIN(F622F)
FOB [HR B RFFT I ZMERAH IR
FERNEN - Bt - FEFBRERTD
ETERMZ2IRKEEMED -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZREBEHmRMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(b)

66

New standards,

The following standards, amendments to
standards and interpretation have been
published and are mandatory for the Group’s
accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016 or later periods, but the Group

has not early adopted them:

amendments and
interpretations have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2015 and have not been early adopted

(b)

X
kS
—NEFE—

Il -
MEH%*H%\K%E

”rHHF'EJ‘JZ?Té:HEF'ﬁ%
AREE AW BT PR

2 FESTHBREEE®)

1 RREXE(m)
SHBREERIHE
EEMER =

B RABI BB N ok AR - B g
12 > 3 2T R -

(ﬂﬁ
—a¥—H—H
BTAR

JE-—%
A—As s kBthr &
s e

Effective for

accounting

periods

beginning on

or after

RUAT BH

R BB

EatilsES

Annual improvements project Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 cycle 1 January 2016
FEHBERR HEBMBHRSEN _T——F —ERF-HA—

E_T-MFEPNFEIE

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Disclosure initiative 1 January 2016

BRI ERE1R(ETAX) R 2 —Z—RF-H—H

HKAS 27 (Amendment) Equity method in separate financial statements 1 January 2016

BB G ERIE275 (BT A) BY MR 2 A —E—RF—-H—-H

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of acceptable methods of 1 January 2016

(Amendments) depreciation and amortisation
BRI ERE165% R BBTE RN ARG E —E—RF—-H—-H

BB EAE
CHEN)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41
(Amendments)
BEGERE165% &
BEGHERE4HR
CHENY)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)
BRI BIREERE105
REBGTERE285 (BFTA)
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (Amendments)
BEMBIWEERE105
BRFBWESERE125 R
BB ERAIE 285 (BFTA)
HKFRS 11 (Amendment)

BEMBREEB11RUETA)
HKFRS 14
BEENBREERE 145
HKFRS 9
BEMBRERABR
HKFRS 15
BEMBRERAS

3885

155%

Agriculture: Bearer plants

B¥  EENEY

Sale or Contribution of assets between and
investor and its associate or joint venture

REEFHHBESSEDE
ZENEELESTE

Investment entities: Applying the consolidation
exception

&é?ﬁrﬁﬁﬁém
BIAME

Accounting for acquisitions of interests in
joint operatlons

WEa e EBRENgTEE

Regulatory deferral accounts

EERLRA

Financial instruments

ERIA

Revenue from contracts with customers

BPA O

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited

1 January 2016
—T—R"&—H—H

To be announced
SN

1 January 2016
—E-RF-H-H

1 January 2016

N
1 January 2016
—T—R"E—H—H
1 January 2018
—E-N\F-A—
1 January 2018
—E-N\F—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #REBEHmRMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(b)

New standards, amendments and
interpretations have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2015 and have not been early adopted
(continued)

The Group has not early adopted the new
standards, amendments to standards and
interpretation, which have been issued but are
not effective for the financial year beginning 1
January 2015. The Group has commenced an
assessment of the related impact, but is not yet
in a position to state whether any substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies
and presentation of the financial information will
be resulted.

2.2 Consolidation
(a) Subsidiaries

PEBLER

u/ﬁ?XéﬁﬁE/xﬂ \

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method
of accounting to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred
for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group.
The consideration transferred includes the
fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred. ldentifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

—E-—RFEFR

2 FESTHBREEE®)

iR EE ()
B RRESBRKE(F)

2.1

(b)

EEABER-_ZE—HE—H—H
PRI E M AL - BN E
REBRMZFTED - BETAR
ZrE (&)

AEEY EREFRASEMER
—E-RFE A HRBZHR
FERARERZFHETER « 2R
ZERT R R2E - ARECETF
AHEERAR & - MR B R AR

TE&EE%‘J‘Z'XE.EH-‘_I—EK &5\7}
BERZIN T ANEREAERE
B o

2.2 REE%E
(a) MBAR

B AR A SR A] ¥ BT
T BEE(BELEEER) - &
REBRDEEER 2 EKES
REEESERIR - REREN
EHERITEEE M EHE

o AAEEEHZEE - B
BARZIEHIEEREAREE
BHEAREH  YRAEEKRE
nHEZ BRERIES G -

AEBERARBEEREHE
HEOIRR - BB AR 2 BEA
ERMEBREE  HREBITH
BREANEEZBBERANEEET
AR 2 AFE - PIEERRE
BRIAREREELZEM
BEXRBBEZRFE - WERRE
RARELR S - REBE G
W5 P AR BB T BRI B B M PR R B
BERIRBEVSZWEERR
FERTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZREBEHmRMEE

2 FESTHEHME @

2.2 EEE(H)
(a) MEATR ()

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests
in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation are measured at either
fair value or the present ownership interests’
proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRS.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is
less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments
in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. It is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from
contingent consideration amendments. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #REBEHmRMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

PEBLER

(a)

(b)

(c)

u/ﬁ?XéﬁﬁE/xﬂ \

Subsidiaries (continued)

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required upon receiving
a dividend from these investments if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive
income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount
of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control
Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions — that is, as
transactions with the owners of the subsidiary
in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded
in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associated company, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss.

—E-—RFEFR
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(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZREBEHmRMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting

70

policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)
(d) Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over
which the Group has significant influence
but not control, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associated
companies are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity
method, the investment is initially recognised
at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’'s share
of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group’s interests
in associated companies include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in an associated
company, any difference between the cost
of the associated company and the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the associated
company’s identifiable assets and liabilities is
accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associated
company is reduced but significant influence
is retained, only a proportionate share of
the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss where appropriate.

The Group’s share of its associated companies’
post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised
in the profit or loss, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associated
company equals or exceeds its interest in
the associated company, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associated
company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #REBEHmRMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(d) Associated companies (continued)
The Group determines at each reporting date

whether there is any objective evidence that
the investment in the associated company
is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the
difference between the recoverable amount of
the associated company and its carrying value
and recognises the amount adjacent to “share
of profits less losses of associated companies”
in the income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between
the Group and its associated companies are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associated companies. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associated companies have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interests
in associated companies are recognised in the
profit or loss.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”). The
CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the directors of the
Company who make strategic decisions.

2.4 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The Group’s functional
currency is Renminbi and the Group’s
presentation currency is Hong Kong dollars to
facilitate analysis of the financial information of
the Group, which is listed in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation
(continued)
(b) Transactions and balances

(c)

72

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions
or valuation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the
profit or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the
group entities (none of which has the currency
of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance
sheet presented are translated at the
closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each
statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Cumulative
exchange differences arising are recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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2 FEESTHHEEME@m)
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(d) HESHLEBRIBIHE

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.4 Foreign currency translation
(continued)
(d) Disposal of foreign operation and partial

TEBLERREARAR |

disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is,
a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associated
company that includes a foreign operation),
all of the currency translation differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to the equity holders of
the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does
not result in the Group losing control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated currency
translation differences are re-attributed to non-
controlling interests and are not recognised
in profit or loss. For all other partial disposals
(that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associated companies that do not
result in the Group losing significant influence)
the proportionate share of the accumulated
currency translation difference is reclassified to
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #ZREBEHmRMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FESHHEHME &)

policies (continued)
2.5 Property, plant and equipment 2.5 Y - HBERRE

Property, plant and equipment, comprising leasehold
improvements, plant and machinery, motor vehicles
and furniture, fixtures and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method, to write
off their cost less the residual values over their
estimated useful lives or remaining useful lives for
those second-hand assets and the estimated useful
lives are as follows:
Electricity utility plants Shorter of the remaining
operation period or
20 years

Other plant and machinery 5 years

Shorter of the lease
period or 5 years

Leasehold improvements

Furniture, fixtures and equipment ~ 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 3-5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

Subsequent costs are included in the carrying
amount of the asset or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged in the profit or loss during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

PEIBLRE

Property, plant and equipment
(continued)

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised within other gains/losses, net in
the profit or loss.

Construction in progress

All costs directly attributable to the construction of
property, plant and equipment including borrowing
costs during the construction period are capitalised
as the costs of the assets, which are classified
as construction in progress. On completion, the
construction in progress is transferred to property,
plant and equipment at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided on
construction in progress until such items as the
relevant assets are completed and available for
intended use.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments represent prepayments
for leasehold land held under operating leases,
which are stated at cost and subsequently are
amortised in the profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease or when there is
impairment, the impairment is expensed in the profit
or loss.

Intangible assets

(a) Concession right
Concession right acquired in a business
combination is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The concession right has
a finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method over its concession right period of
shorter of the remaining operation period or 20
years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #H& &R zRMIET

2 FESTHBREEE®)
2.8 ML EE (&)

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
2.8 Intangible assets (continued)

(b) Computer software

Computer software separately acquired is
shown at historical cost. Computer software
acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of computer
software over its estimated useful live of 2-5
years.

2.9 Impairment of investments in

subsidiaries, associated companies
and non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Assets other than goodwill
that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.10 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #REBEHmRMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
2.10 Financial assets (continued)

PEBLER

u/FTXé(EﬁEAH \

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the profit or loss. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category are presented in the profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is recognised in the profit or loss when the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting

78

policies (continued)
2.10 Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must
not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counter party.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date
whether there is objective evidence that a financial
asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.

2.11 Financial guarantee policy

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that
require the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Such financial guarantees are given to banks,
financial institutions and other bodies on behalf of
subsidiaries or associates to secure loans, overdrafts
and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in
the financial statements at fair value on the date
the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of the initial
amount, less amortisation of fees recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18, and the best estimate of
the amount required to settle the guarantee. These
estimates are determined based on experience
of similar transactions and history of past losses,
supplemented by management’s judgement. The fee
income earned is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the life of the guarantee. Any increase in the
liability relating to guarantees is reported in the profit
or loss within other operating expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBEHRME

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FESHBEME 4w

policies (continued)

2.12 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-
in, first-out (FIFO) method. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.13Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that
the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the original terms of the receivables.
Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency
in payments are considered indicators that the trade
receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
amount of the provision is recognised in the profit
or loss. When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it
is written off against other gains/losses, net in the
profit or loss. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to other gains/
losses, net in the profit or loss.

2.14 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially measured at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months
or less, and bank overdrafts.

2.16 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.
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2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEEHHFHE 4w

policies (continued)

2.17 Convertible preference share
Convertible preference shares are classified as
equity that can be converted to share capital at
the option of the holder. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds. Convertible preference shares are
recognised initially at the fair value.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current
and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit
or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associated
companies operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill, the deferred income tax is not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected
to apply when the related deferred income tax asset
is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #REBEHmRMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 FEEHHFHE 4w
policies (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax 218 EHARIELFTBH (&)
(continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the BEIEFTSHEER ARG Al GEEISE
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will SR K TS BB = RS DA B A
be available against which the temporary differences FER o

can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary IRIEFT SR T i /B A &) N B & A 7]
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries KREEAZEREZEMEE  EARE
and associated companies, except for deferred B ARG SR =R 2B ORE - A
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the iy = RIER B R A5 R KA gE £ [0
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and ZIRIEFIB & FERIBRAD o

it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset EAAOEBREIMITRES - LI EEH
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset MEEERESEHHIEAE  BEL
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and R EE R BRI ERF — S EH
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities MR — RN ERE TRERTEE
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation B Z B ERE AR EHEE
authority on either the taxable entity or difference KRR AREMSEHEERE
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle BT LA

the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Borrowings 2.19 &K
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, BRI EATFEINREEER HK
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings KRR o 53R H 1% 1 85 5k A5
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any BE - TS sE (KBRS ) B iE O]
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction BB 2 E 171 Z= B RME 3 A LA E R F
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the KA B HRNIER -

profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are RUYEFBMEMS T ERERE Dk
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the 2HRVEF AL IRELZ 1B TR
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility BERZRGKA - RILBERT @ &
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred AEeRTCEZIRENER AL - H5
until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no EBIRBETE D 2 2R E B e A
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the 2R BRBEAEANEAREE
facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a & 2 FBAFIE - WK B E 2 45 78 2
prepayment for liquidity services and amortised over AL o

the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities BRIERAEBEHEKESEEZFE
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer BEE#ERHEsRL> 2@ - &
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after BfER AR AERE -

the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #H& &R zRMIET

2 Summary of significant accounting

82

policies (continued)
2.20 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use. Other borrowing costs are
expensed.

2.21 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leaves entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (continued)
(b) Defined contribution plans

(c)

TEBLERREARAR |

The Group participates in a mandatory
provident fund scheme (“MPF”) and employee
pension schemes established by municipal
government in the PRC for the eligible
employees in Hong Kong and the PRC
respectively.

The Group’s and the employees’ contributions
to the MPF comply with the related statutory
requirements. The Group has no further
payments obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The Group’s contributions to
the MPF are expensed as incurred and are not
reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave MPF prior to vesting fully
in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is
available. The asset of MPF is held separately
from those of the Group in independently
administered funds.

The Group’s contribution to the employee
pension schemes in the PRC is at a percentage
in compliance with the requirements of
respective municipal governments.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or whenever an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier
of the following dates: (a) when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises
costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of termination benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to their present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

84

(d)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-
based compensation plan in which the
Group receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments of the
Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period
is determined by reference to the fair value of
the options granted, excluding the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions which are
included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest and including
the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for
example, the requirement for employees to
save). At each balance sheet date, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-
market vesting performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the
revision of original estimates, if any, in the profit
or loss, and a corresponding adjustment to
equity over the remaining vesting period.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #REBEHmRMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

PEBLSR

ERIEBR AR |

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.
In respect of the potential obligations to dismantle
the wind farms at the end of their useful lives, the
Group would assess the obligations continuously
based on the latest changes in the laws and
regulations and make provision when the recognition
criteria are met.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the
provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the provision
of services in the ordinary course of the Group’s
activities. Revenue is shown net of business tax
within the Group and after eliminating sales within the
Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities as described below. The amount of
revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable
until all contingencies relating to the sale have
been resolved. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of
each arrangement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 Summary of significant accounting

86

policies (continued)
2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)  Revenue from alternative energy is recognised
based on power dispatch during commercial
operation. Commercial operation starts when
obtaining a Power Purchase Agreement,
safety certificate from the State Electricity
Regulatory Commission (“SERC”) or Provincial
Grid Authority, and 240 hours commissioning.
Revenue attributable to the sales of electricity
generated during construction and testing
period is not included in the electricity sales
revenue, but is offset against the cost of

property, plant and equipment.

(i)  Revenue from Clean Development Mechanism
(“CDM”) is recognised when the counterparty
has committed to purchase the carbon credits,
the sales prices have been agreed, relevant
electricity has been generated and transmitted,
and it is probable that the carbon credits will be

entitled.

(iii) Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest

method.

(iv) Dividend income is recognised when the right

to receive payment is established.

2.24 Operating leases as lessee

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incentives
received from the lessor) are charged to the profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the

lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #H&BEHzRMIET

2 FESTHRBE @)

225 HAREE

2 Summary of significant accounting

policies (continued)
2.25 Contingent liabilities

TEBLERREARAR |

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence of one or more
uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

2.26 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the
Company’s financial statements in the period in
which the dividends are approved.

3 Financial risk management
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: foreign exchange risk, interest rate
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other payables and bank borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes.

It is the policy of the Group not to enter into derivative
transactions for speculative purposes.

The Board of Directors focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

88

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and
Mainland China and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions and monetary assets and liabilities
that are denominated in a currency that is not
the Group’s functional currency.

The Group currently does not have any
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors the foreign
exchange exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2015, if US dollars
and Hong Kong dollars had strengthened/
weakened by 5% against Renminbi
respectively, with all other variables held
constant, the Group’s profit before tax would
have been HK$2,880,000 higher/lower
respectively (2014: HK$1,866,000 higher/
lower).

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk mainly arises from
bank borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk due to fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate. The Group’s results
and operating cash flows are dependent on
changes in market interest rates.

The Group does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk. However, management will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposures
should the need arise.

As at 31 December 2015, if interest rates had
been 100 (2014: 100) basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit before income tax would have
decreased/increased by HK$3,895,000 (2014:
HK$4,839,000) after interest capitalised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

TEBLERREARAR |

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in its short-
term bank deposit, cash and cash equivalents,
prepayments and trade and other receivables,
and financial guarantee provided for credit
facilities granted to certain associated
companies.

The carrying amounts of short-term bank
deposit, cash and cash equivalents and trade
and other receivables represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
its financial assets.

To manage the credit risk associated with
short-term bank deposit, cash and cash
equivalents, most of the deposits are placed
with certain state-owned banks in the PRC
which are high-credit-quality financial
institutions and banks with high credit rankings
in Hong Kong.

To manage the credit risk associated with trade
and other receivables, the Group adopts risk
control measures to assess the credit quality,
to determine credit limits and approve credit of
customers, taking into account their financial
position and past experience. The Group has
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Financial risk management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

(d)

90

Credit risk (continued)

The Group is exposed to significant
concentration of credit risk in terms of electricity
sales as the Group’s sales of electricity were
made to state-owned provincial power grid
companies. The Group normally does not
require collateral from trade debtors. It normally
grants credit terms of 30 days to these power
grid companies. However, part of the trade
receivables due from the power grid companies
relate to government subsidy which are subject
to the government allocation of the tariff
surcharge for renewable energy. Based on past
experience and industry practice, these tariff
premiums are generally paid in 6 to 12 months
from the date of the sales recognition. Ageing
analysis of the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in Note 19. Management makes
periodic collective assessment as well as
individual assessment of the recoverability of
trade and other receivables based on historical
payment records, the length of the overdue
period, the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with the relevant
debtors. The Group’s historical experience
in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances and the
directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables has been
made.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable
to meet its current obligations when they fall
due. The Group measures and monitors its
liquidity through the maintenance of prudent
ratios regarding the liquidity structure of
the overall assets, liabilities, loans and
commitments of the Group. The Group also
maintains a conservative level of liquid assets
to ensure the availability of sufficient cash
flows to meet any unexpected and material
cash requirements in the course of ordinary
business.

During the year, the Group complied with all
externally imposed loan covenant requirements
to which it was subject.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #H&BEHzRMIET

3 Financial risk management (continuved) 3 BIFEEEEIE @)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1

TREBLERREERRAR |

(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities
at the balance sheet date. The table has been
drawn up with reference to the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group is required to
pay. Except for bank borrowings, balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying balances
as the impact of discounting is not significant.

R ESESE )

(d) RBESREE(F)
TRHFNAEENEERSRA
BZEKHEHE - TR2EER
BEZRBARESRERAEH
AEEABFA LT BRME
B [RIRITERIN  ARBEERF
EITK BNt ZEARIHZ
EHEENERREE -

Less than Between Between Over
1year 1and2years 2and5 years 5 years Total
—£h -3CF ELf RENE h
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL AR AR AR A
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-RETZA=1-H
Bank borrowings RIER 113,583 109,064 304,813 143,933 671,353
Trade and other payables EfEREBEMN 65911 - - - 65,911
Financial quarantee AR 127,462 - - - 127,462
At 31 December 2014 RZE-MmE+-A=1-H
Bank borrowings Rl 130,655 125,019 343,664 257,572 856,910
Trade and other payables ERSTRAMERN 104,124 = = = 104,124
Financial guarantee HBER 150,060 - - - 150,060

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

The Group monitors capital by reviewing the capital
structure. The capital structure of the Group consists
of debt and equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company, as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet. The Group considers the cost and the risk
associated with the capital. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares or conduct shares buy-back.

The Group maintains its gearing ratio within the
reasonable range according to the Group’s strategy.

—E-—RFEFR

3.2 EXEREE

AEEERBEAZRE RREAREE
HEHmEAE MR RERTTEAGR
Mam - WHERRFRENE RRBLETR
BEEZHRA -

AEBEERMTERARBELEN -
BUGEBEERBRAR  AREZ
BARBERBEEBRARREARKH
ANEERE - AEEEEEESKA
RECHEBARR - RERKIAEER
R AEEHERHRBARRIMZ
BB BITHRDSGETRNE
[B] o

AEBERBEERE SAKEELRE
BLEEFNAEHER -
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3 Financial risk management (continued) 3

92

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management (continued)
The gearing ratios as 31 December 2015 and 2014
were as follows:

jﬁﬂ%”ﬁ%)
2 EXAEREE(F

R-_ZT— ﬂi&_f mE+—H
=T HZEXREGFELERNOT :

2015 2014

—E-51F%F —TmF

HK$'000 HK$’000

FET T

Current borrowings N {8 K 84,856 89,911
Non-current borrowings FE T ED A X 471,874 589,892
Total borrowings BRARTE 556,730 679,803
Less: Cash and bank deposit B B RIRITIFNK (185,519) (278,271)
Net debt position BTG FERAR 371,211 401,532
Total equity EmiRRE 1,606,966 1,758,860
Gearing ratio BEARBFEEE 23.1% 22.8%

Fair value estimation

The Group has no assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value at 31 December 2015 and
2014.

The carrying values of trade and other receivables,
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other payables approximate their fair values due to
their short maturities. The carrying values of variable
rate borrowings approximate their fair values as the
impact of discounting using the relevant rate is not
significant.

3.3 A¥EE

R-E-—RAFER-ZF-—HEF+=-A
=t BAKREYEZEAFEFEZ
BENAE -

TR U R R e L At PR~ RTT AR
BehBReEBYUAREBMNEREE
NN REEEE A FERS

THRREEME R ZEERE - FR
fERZBREEREE R FERE - JiH
RERBRNRTRNZELTERX -
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Critical accounting estimates and
judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Estimated impairment of property,
plant and equipment, intangible
assets, prepaid land lease payments
and interests in associated companies
The Group tests whether property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, prepaid land lease
payments and interests in associated companies
engaged in the alternative energy businesses
(“Alternative Energy Projects”) have suffered
any impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable in accordance with the
accounting policy in Note 2.9. The Group reviews
certain indicators of potential impairment such as
actual electricity dispatched, tariff of electricity,
market unit price of Certified Emission Reduction
(*CER”) and other general market conditions.

If an indication of impairment is identified, the need
for recognising an impairment loss is assessed by
comparing the carrying amount of the assets, to
the higher of (i) the fair value less cost to sell, and
(ii) the value-in-use on a project-by-project basis.
The fair value is either determined by referring
to recent transactions or by independent valuers
whenever appropriate. The value-in-use of the
assets represents estimated future cash flows from
the continuous use of the assets, and requires
complex assumptions and estimates such as future
electricity dispatched, tariff of electricity and CER
and discount rates. The discount rates used to
discount the estimated future cash flows are based
on the relevant industry sector risk premium and the
gearing ratio.

TEBLRERREARAR | —T-RFFR
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4 Critical accounting estimates and

94

judgements (continued)
(a) Estimated impairment of property,

plant and equipment, intangible
assets, prepaid land lease payments
and interests in associated companies
(continued)

During the year, the Group has performed
impairment assessment on the Alternative Energy
Projects. The value-in-use calculation was based on
the key assumptions, including (i) average annual
tariff increment at approximately 2% (2014: 3%)
based on management’s expectation on market
development and general inflation, (ii) Projection
of volume of electricity dispatched based on
the operational feasibility reports and historical
performances, and (iii) assuming the contributions
from CER is of negligible amount. The pre-tax
discount rates applied to the cash flow projections
are between 10.59% and 12.82% (2014: 11.29% and
13.65%) per annum.

Based on the impairment assessment, the
recoverable amounts of subsidiaries operating wind
farms and interests in associated companies are
higher than their respective carrying amounts.

With all other variables held constant, if there is
an average annual tariff increment at 1% (2014:
1.5%) throughout the operating period, the profit
before taxation would have been decreased by
HK$16,723,000 (2014: HK$56,430,000). Similarly,
with all other variables held constant, if the volume of
electricity dispatched is 10% (2014: 10%) less than
management expectation, the profit before taxation
would have been decreased by HK$84,205,000
(2014: HK$150,010,000).

4 ERSFHERHAE @
(a) 3% - e RE  BRE

-3 %Eﬁit@frﬂ% IE&EA
B "TZ%&ZHHT/ME

(A&

AEERN AEBERERERER
EHRERE - FRAEBEFEER
HFIEFBHBEMEL 25 HER
EEEYMEERMERBBIR2E
B EHBENE2% (T —PI4F :
3% )2 BEIEIE - (NVBRIEEERT
MRELBAERBZEEGS 2B E
2 K(i)BEKELERFEEZ B/
T% - @REANRIRER=T88 2 AT8L
BWERAEFGF1059% E12.82% ( = F
—PO4E : 11.29% % 13.65%) °

RIE LB ERE - B AR 2ERN
ENCRZPNN: AN 5 ALl qE]
SEREZAMNEKAEES -

TRMEEMEREFTTEZBERT -
MR & IEFHANTFEFLHEEEIN%
(ZZ—P%E : 1.5%) T 5l 5l &
5&/1\16723000/’\%-573(_§E g4 -
56,430,000/ 7L ) ° RH + EFAA
HMEHERFTEZBAT @ WEE
EREIEBBED10% (- —MN4F :
10% ) + %t Al 7 F& R 2> 84,205,000
B (ZZF — U4 : 150,010,000%
JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

PEIBLRE

Useful lives and residual value of
property, plant and equipment
Management of the Company and its subsidiaries
determine the estimated useful lives, residual value
and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
projected wear and tear incurred during power
generation. This could change significantly as a
result of technical renovations on power generators.
Management will adjust the estimated useful lives
where useful lives vary with previously estimated
useful lives. It is reasonably possible, based on
existing knowledge, that outcomes within the
next financial year that are different from current
assumptions could require material adjustments
to the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for potential tax exposures based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will affect the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which
such determination is made.

Allowances for bad and doubtful
debts

The policy for allowance of bad and doubtful
debts of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectability and ageing analysis of receivables
and management’s judgement. A considerable
amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each customer.

BRIRERBRRAE | —T—HFFR
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(b)

(c)

(d)
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Critical accounting estimates and

judgements (continued)

(e) Revenue recognition for CDM income
CDM income is determined by the electricity volume
generated, emission reduction factors and unit price
of CER. The volumes of electricity transmitted to the
grid companies are subject to the verification and
certification by an agent appointed by the buyer.
The final settlement of CDM income will only occur
after verification and certification by an agent. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in
estimating the expected volumes of CER certification
and the probability that future economic benefits will
flow to the entity.

Revenue

The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised during the year is as follows:

4

BERETHERHE @)

(e)

}%%’Q%E%%UH&AZHQEEW
BRBERBHIWATIBIEELE

/WHFI%&*%%EHHF s “'{_L{fﬂf?%ﬁ’ﬁ)ﬁ
E e RMBEARRABLHMNEE - ALH
iﬁ%i&ﬂ’]ﬁﬁ*ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁm o JBRE
J e B A 2 PR ER P A B oAz 78
BIEXBAET - NhFHTE B RBE
iﬂ’]’fia’éi&ﬂ@ﬁ%@ﬂ = 15 7 A B

BERYRTREME | - MEIEH SR H R o

I =

REE

AHETBWRATEE NSRBI ¢

2015 2014

—E-RF — PO

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FABIT

Sales of electricity BHHE 132,919 97,334

Sales of electricity were all generated by the wind power
plants of the Group. The Group has a single reportable
segment which is wind power segment. As the Group
does not have material operations outside the PRC, no
geographic segment information is presented.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group’s
revenue for reportable segment from external customers
of HK$132,919,000 (2014: HK$97,334,000) is only
attributable to the China market.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has
two customers with revenue exceeding 10% of the
Group’s total revenue (2014: two customers). Revenues
from the customers amounting to HK$92,7083,000
and HK$40,216,000 (2014: HK$49,553,000 and
HK$47,781,000) respectively are solely attributable to
alternative energy business.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6 Expenses by nature

e MBEHRME

6 HEMEE T ZHAX

2015 2014
—E-RF —E—mEF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET T
Auditor’s remuneration SN B &
— Audit services — B ZRTE 1,550 1,650
— Non-audit services (Note) — FEBZBRAS (M aF) 400 430
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TR 4 7R & RRIE 6
payments (Note 16) (Hiz£16) 1,152 971
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) R &E##(H:717) 445 475
Depreciation of property, plant and M - B REEITE
equipment (Note 14) (Hiat14) 76,525 60,245
Net exchange gains b 3 Y a5 58 (1,156) (1,784)
Employee benefit expenses (including BEBANAX(REEZMHE)
directors’ emoluments) (Note 10) (Ktat10) 17,088 14,687
Operating lease rental AN -Vitkn 1,675 1,647
Repair and maintenance expenses RIERRERX 1,481 3,379
Corporate expenses PEMAS 847 988
Legal and professional fees FERERBEER 894 1,086
Management service fee EIRREE 990 990
Other expenses HibF 10,374 10,029
Total cost of sales and SHER A RITIE AR5
administrative expenses 112,265 94,793

Note: Expense paid to the auditor in relation to buy-back of convertible
preference shares was accounted for as a reduction from the

retained earnings.

TEBLRERREARAR | —T-RFFR
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e MBEHRME

Other gain/(losses), net 7 Httsm (&8 FE
2015 2014
—E-IHF —F-mF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET T
Gain on disposal of property, LEYZE - R MBS
plant and equipment 22 389
Loss on disposal of an associated & — A& A Bl EE
company - (1,516)
Others HAth - 98
22 (1,029)
Finance income and costs 8 HKWARRERI
2015 2014
—E-FF —F-MmF
HK$'000 HK$’000
Fix FHTT
Finance costs: BUE A ¢
— interest expense on convertible note —AERER 2 EHRE - (2,999)
— interest expenses on bank borrowings  —R/TERZFI B (43,154) (45,933)
Less: amount capitalised in construction & : R TREN L& EE(H:7)
in progress (Note) - 11,862
Finance costs BB KA (43,154) (37,070)
Finance income: Eip A N
— interest income on bank deposits —RITERFEIA 6,583 513819
Finance costs — net BUE AN — F 58 (36,571) (31,751)

Note: The capitalisation rate applied to funds borrowed and used for
the construction of wind farms was between 6.03% and 6.55% per

annum in 2014.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #H&BEHzRMIET

9 Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include three directors (2014: two)
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
on note 32. The emoluments payable to the remaining two
(2014: three) individual during the year, which fell within

9 HIREEMEAL
AEERN  AEBREREHFALIBE=4
—ENF:RWB)EE BEZHMEER
EES22 % 2 5T B o AN E R EA
HBTIME(ZE—MF : =% )ERI AL 2B
% #8511 A 51,000,00078 7T © %€ o

emolument band of less than HK$1 million, are as follows: AR
2015 2014
—F-51%F —TmF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET T
Basic salaries, housing allowances, AR - EFE - HAEah
other allowances and benefits in kind NEYH = 1,358 2,078
Bonuses TE4L 190 279
Retirement scheme contributions BRRGTEIHER 36 34
1,584 2,391
10 Employee benefit expenses 10 EERAMAX
2015 2014
—E-FF —F-MmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH& T
Wages, salaries and other benefits T8 - HekHAMETR 15,106 13,156
Provision for/(write back of) REFRFR 2 BE (FE)
unused annual leave 4 (33)
Pension costs - defined contribution RIRE A — E BB REE
plan (Note a) (Ktita) 1,978 1,564
17,088 14,687
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10 Employee benefit expenses 10

(continued)
Notes:

(a) The Group’s contribution to the employee pension scheme in the
PRC is at a percentage in compliance with the requirements of
respective municipal governments. The Group also participates
in the MPF scheme under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employee’s relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 with effect from 1 June 2014
(HK$25,000 before 1 June 2014). Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately.

(b)  Contributions totaling HK$30,000 (2014: HK$23,000) were payable
under the MPF scheme at 31 December 2015.

11 Income tax expense 11
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group has no assessable profit for the year (2014:
Nil). Taxation on PRC profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at 25%, which is
the rate of taxation prevailing in the PRC.

e MBEHRME

EERA B @)

st -

(a) AEERFEHESRASEIELZHKTIIZR
HEATERAREZ B REL - XEBTTRER
B Gl AR ST BRI AZ BB RMIEHEE
ZEERERESE - ABESTEREBEL
ERABEZ EBEHTRNKTE - REBRESA
2 BEREEHEEREBEBRAZS%MA
FTEIEL 43R - S A Z AR A _£R A30,000
BE(BZT—NEAA—AER)(ZE—HF
NA—BZB1A25000/47T) © Mat&1EH 2 &
RENBS SRR ©

(b) R-Z—HFE+-A=+—H RiFaELsa
BT 2 A 30,0008 T (ZF—M4F -
23,000/87T) °

FrEM X d

MR AEBARFELEERBEF - QI E
REBAEHRIELBE(—Z—MME &) -
BRSO R B AN F E (AT ERFUE R
o BE A R 25% 5t E o

2015 2014

—F-51F%F —T-mF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FBT

Withholding tax on dividends BRARE 2 TETE (4,932) (6,906)

Deferred income tax (expense)/credit RIEFTERH(ZH), HR

(Note 25) (Ht5E25) (737) 4,984

Income tax expense Bl i (5,669) (1,922)
Note: Mt -

The share of income tax expense of associated companies of
HK$15,309,000 (2014: HK$6,656,000) is included in the Group’s share of
profits less losses of associated companies.

BB E AR ZFEH XL A15.309,0008 (=%
—VI4 : 6,656,000 7T)  JIst AREE 2 BIGEE D
A A RUE 1 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #H&BEHzRMIET

11 Income tax expense (continued) 11 BB H @)
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs AEBAGHANRN 2B - BEAE L
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the ¥ aFMEA 2 MEF IR KRG ERS 2 2H
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the TRIBZ ZFINT ¢

consolidated entities as follows:

2015 2014
—F-51%F —TmF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHET FAT
Profit before income tax Fr 5 %% Al g ) 45,021 14,883
Less: Share of profits less losses of B (R E R E 2
associated companies s AR ES 18 (60,916) (45,076)
Less: Fair value gain on derivative liability & : $T£ T ABEZ AFERS - (46)
(15,895) (30,239)
Tax calculated at the domestic rates REBBIZR 2 & F P A
applicable to profits in the Bl ARG E 2 1A
respective countries 7,745 5,478
Expenses not deductible for I w53
taxation purpose (1,935) (2,594)
Income not subject to tax BAERM 2 BA 1,136 1,058
Tax losses not recognised RER 2 T IEE 18 (5.144) (2,050)
Deferred tax on undistributed profits and K2R Fl 2 IR FE I8 & A F{E
fair value difference =5 (2,539) 1,434
Reversal of deferred tax upon disposal of A H & —[EEE & A 514 B BRI
an associated company i1 - 1,658
Withholding tax on dividends BRARE 2 AT (4,932) (6,906)
Income tax expense s i (5,669) (1,922)
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 48.7% MEFH BRI K E48.7% (= — U :
(2014: 18.1%). 18.1%) °
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12 Earnings per share
(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

12 BRER
(a) EA
FBREARZRNDZRAARESZEA A
IR TR ARFERNE ZEITEBRR
IREFHEEETHE -

2015 2014
A i —TmF
Profit attributable to equity holders of AR AELRT
the Company (HK$ thousand) (F%7T) 40,454 14,462
Weighted average number of B BT T MR N T E
ordinary shares in issue (thousand) (Fi%) 2,356,372 2,356,372
Basic earnings per share FRERZF (FRAW)
(HK cents per share) 1.72 0.61

(b) Diluted
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting
the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. In 2015, the convertible
preference shares are assumed to have been
converted into ordinary shares.

(b) &8
BEREERNVEBABRAKEELR
BN FEEEE - A ARREM
BRAEBGCHERZE 2 ERBRAREN
B RM-_T—R%F  AHERELEREK
BEREHASLBA -

2015 2014
A i —TF
Profit attributable to equity holders of the 7R Fl#EzEA A B A
Company (HK$ thousand) (F#T) 40,454 14,462
Weighted average number of ordinary BEETERRMNE T
shares in issue (thousand) (Fi%) 2,356,372 2,356,372
Adjustment for: AT HIERAE :
— Assumed conversion of convertible — BRI RE SRR
preference shares (thousand) B(FR) 242,466 300,000
— Assumed conversion of convertible —REB AR ERE R IR
note (thousand) (FR%) - 60,177
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ BRFFESRE SR T
shares for diluted earnings per share AR N 98 (FAR)
(thousand) 2,598,838 2,716,549
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents BREESRT (BRBEN)
per share) 1.56 0.53
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12 Earnings per share (continued) 12 BSREN &
(b) Diluted (continued) (b) #58(#)
Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 HE—_Z—AF+-_A=1+—HIF
December 2015 did not assume the exercise of the EZSREERANTERKAFEERN
share options outstanding during the year since the MWARITE 2 BIREETE RERAR
exercise would have an anti-dilutive effect. BTN EERESTE -
Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 HE-—ZE—WNFE+_A=+—HItF
December 2014 did not assume the exercise of BEZSREERANTERKAEERN
the share options and the subscription rights for AT 2 BB R T R BB SRR 2
convertible preference shares outstanding during the REBREETE  BEEAEBITESE
year since the exercise would have an anti-dilutive ERBERE -
effect
13 Dividends 13 RE
2015 2014
—E—HF —Z—O4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&TT
Final dividend proposed, of HK0.2 cents  ##IREERERL 2 - AR L BAR
(2014: nil) per ordinary share 0.2BM(=F—m : &) 4,713 =
On 22 March 2016, a final dividend of HKO0.2 cents per R-IE—RF=A-+-H EEZE2EH
ordinary share payable in cash in respect of the year BHE—E—RAFt-_A=1t—HItFEX
ended 31 December 2015 is proposed by the Board and HIRR B - FREERAIRS.2B - AR
the amounts are not accounted for until they are approved RERAANREEREAFAS E#E - A
by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general Rk 2 KRR EREEERBBRBES
meeting of the Company. As the proposed final dividend K BMANE—E—RAF+—_A=+—HH
is declared after the balance sheet date, such dividend is BE o
not recognised as liability as at 31 December 2015.
No dividend was proposed and paid for the year ended 31 HE_Z-—NF+_A=+—HIFE " I
December 2014, mEENERNEMRE
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14 Property, plant and equipment

104

e MBEHRME

14 Y% - EBERRE

Electricity Furniture,
Leasehold utility plant  fixtures and Motor
improvement  and others  equipment vehicles Total
REM= BERR & £ER
%8 Hit #fE RE by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR THET TR THEx

At 1 January 2014 R=B-ME-F-A
Cost KA 2,342 1,092,780 1,050 1,499 1,097,671
Accumulated depreciation and ZEHTERRE

impairment (2,342) (192,535) (836) (1,113) (196,826)
Net book amount REFE - 900,245 214 386 900,845
Year ended 31 December 2014 HZ-E-ME+-A=1-H

LEE

Opening net book amount ENEREFE = 900,245 214 386 900,845
Currency translation differences ~ E}HBEZE - (21,937) (3) 7 (21,947)
Additions AE - 90 - - 90
Transfer from construction EORREIRE

in progress - 358,540 - - 358,540
Depreciation e - (59,955) (85) (205) (60,245)
Closing net book amount FREMFE = 1,176,983 126 174 1,177,283
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+-A=1+-H
Cost A - 1,424,807 1,029 1,420 1,427,256
Accumulated depreciation and ZIMERAE

impairment - (247,824) (903) (1,246) (249,973)
Net book amount REHE - 1176983 126 174 1,177,283
Year ended 31 December 2015 HE-E-TFt-A=t-H

LLEE

Opening net book amount ENEEFE - 1,176,983 126 174 1,177,283
Currency translation differences ~ ERHBEZE - (62,675) (10) (4) (62,689)
Additions NE - 987 156 - 1,143
Disposal L& - (15) - - (15)
Depreciation ik - (76,354) (48) (123) (76,525)
Closing net book amount FRRERE - 1,038,926 224 47 1,039,197
At 31 December 2015 R-B-ZF+-A=1-H
Cost A - 1,345,858 1,007 1,113 1,347,978
Accumulated depreciation and ZAMERAE

impairment - (306,932) (783) (1,066) (308,781)
Net book amount REFE - 1,038,926 24 47 1,039,197

Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the
Group’s property, plant and equipment with carrying
values of HK$1,028.1 million (2014: HK$1,165.0 million)

(Note 24).

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #H&BEHzRMIET

15 Construction in progress 15 EE TR

Total

#st

HK$’000

T

At 1 January 2014 RZE—mFE—H—H 251,884
Currency translation differences VE R e =50 (3,982)
Additions NE 115,209
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BRI MR R (358,540)
Transfer to prepaid land lease payments RSB LA ERE (4,071)
At 31 December 2014 RZZE—MFE+=ZA=+—H 500
At 1 January 2015 R-_E—RFE—HA—H 500
Currency translation differences FEHIRE 58 (55)
Additions NE 610
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+=ZA=+—H 1,055

- =
16 Prepaid land lease payments 16 AT L #bHERKIE

HK$’000

T

At 1 January 2014 RZE—mFE—H—H 13,147
Currency translation differences VE R e =58 (313)
Transfer from construction in progress EEERETIE 4,071
Amortisation 5 (971)
At 31 December 2014 R-ZE—ME+-_A=+—H 15,934
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—HF—H 15,934
Currency translation differences fEHMEERE (845)
Amortisation 55 (1,152)
At 31 December 2015 R-EBE—RF+-_A=+—H 13,937

Notes: Mt -

(a)  Certain bank borrowings are secured by certain of the Group’s (a) HTRITEKIIAAKEREE10,100,000/47T

prepaid land lease payments with carrying values of HK$10.1 million

(2014: HK$11.7 million) (Note 24).

TEBLRERREARAR | —T-RFFR

—Z—[U4 : 11,700,000/ ) 2 & FHEfM L
AERBEEER (M E24) -
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17 Intangible assets

17 BILEE

e MBEHRME

Computer Concession
software right Total
E R HFErRE ot
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHIT FHIT T
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—MNFE—HF—H
Cost PR 803 210,018 210,821
Accumulated amortisation and T RORE
impairment (418) (204,350) (204,768)
Net book amount BREDFE 385 5,668 6,053
Year ended 31 December 2014 BZ-—Z—HWE+=A
=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 385 5,668 6,053
Currency translation differences B & %8 (7) (123) (130)
Amortisation e (73) (402) (475)
Closing net book amount FREREFE 305 5,143 5,448
At 31 December 2014 N-_E—MOE
+=HA=+—H
Cost B A 793 205,354 206,147
Accumulated amortisation and Rt RORE
impairment (488) (200,211) (200,699)
Net book amount BREFE 305 5,143 5,448
Year ended 31 December 2015 B8z=—Z—H1F+=8
=+—HLFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 305 5,143 5,448
Currency translation differences bR mE = (13) (272) (285)
Amortisation i (50) (395) (445)
Closing net book amount FREEEFE 242 4,476 4,718
At 31 December 2015 R-E—RE
+=HA=+—H
Cost AR 770 193,810 194,580
Accumulated amortisation and Rt KORE
impairment (528) (189,334) (189,862)
Net book amount BRMEFE 242 4,476 4,718
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18 Interests in associated companies

e MBEHRME

18 REFE QT 2R

2015 2014

S —F-mF

HK$'000 HK$’000

F#&T T

Group’s share of net assets AEEEGEEESE 923,940 965,691

The following financial information, after making
adjustments to conform with the Group’s significant
accounting policies, represents the Group’s aggregate
share of assets, liabilities, revenue and results of
associated companies, all of which are unlisted, and is

summarised below:

THFBEER (KRABARAEE T ERS

BE—BOIAREEA KRG

fis N A (2 AP

BRIFLTRARZEE  BfF - BaEkE

A BT

2015 2014

—F-IHF —FT-mF

HK$'000 HK$’000

FET T T

Assets BE 1,691,998 1,970,072

Liabilities A& (768,058) (1,004,381)

Net assets BEFE 923,940 965,691

Revenue Wz 232,606 228,137

Profit for the year NE i A 60,916 45,076
Particulars of the associated companies are set out on BNl 2 BN E130H °

page 130.
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18

108

Interests in associated companies 18 REEE N T 2= @)
(continued)

Set out below are the summarised financial information for THE A REER SN G 2B iEE R -
the associated companies of the Group.

Summarised income statement Uk 25 3R HBE 2t
CECICHKC CECIC HKE CECIC HKC (Gansu) Linyi National
Wind Power Wind Power Wind Power Environmental
Company Limited Company Limited Company Limited New Energy Co,, Ltd Total
hERARRNRE hHARENRE THEE(HRRN il EE
(FH)ERAA (FL)ERAA REERLE BRAT 3

ws oM W5 AM W5 oM W5 A W5 WM

“§-Ef CRBF C%-5fF CRBF CR-BF CFMF CR-EF CEREF CR-Rf CRQF

HKSO00  HKSODD  HKSO00  HKSO0D  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKSODD  HKSO00  HKSO0D

Thn  TAn TR TAT  TEm  Thn T TR TR TER

Revenue b 0590 2663 969 (0157 261297 198648 - BN 60658 596728

Profit for the year KEE & 004 B2 12298 0404 103645 30543 238 155367 7707

Other comprefensive loss EHEAEE (564%)  (2.260) (2603 (8991)  (59912)  (24502) - (B80) (139,013 (86,269
Total comprehensive income 2ENAEE (17078) 37482 (10305 1113 43733 6,041 - (3202 16354 51434
Dividends received from WERE AT RS
associated companies (29960)  (42280)  (3.548) - (15810) (2373 - (6222  (49322)  (72,190)
Summarised balance sheet EESERBM
CECICHKC CECIC HKE CECIC HKC (Gansu) Linyi National
Wind Power Wind Power Wind Power Environmental
Company Limited CompanyLimited Company Limited New Energy Co,, Ltd Total
THEERRILE hEFERRIRE PERER(HRIRS ETRIfER
(BL)ERAR (®1)ERAA $EARLA FRAR fa3f

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
215 2014 215 14 2015 14 2015 14 2015 014
C§-RF CRRE CR-EF CRPE CE-EF CTME CR-Rf CRRE CR-EF CRPF
th  +=F  t=f§ tzfF ft=F 2R tZB tZRF t2B 1Z5
=t-B =t-B =t-B =t-B Zt-B =t-A Zt-B =t-A Zf-B =t-H
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HK$000
Tén  Tér  TAn  Thr  TEan  TEr A TEm  TEm TEn

Non-current assefs ErgtE 1555721 1756440 795586 910276 1,603,855 1,808,410 - 3,955,160 4,475,126
Current assets iHEE 198660 277039 6560 76680 134397 343073 - - 490621 69792
Totalassets BElE I3 Q08419 8348 BG066 18325 2061483 - - 445783 5171918
Non-current iabiffes ERiEEL 9364 10923 377664 450080  T2816 82562 - - 684 641078
Current iabilties EHER 658326  BA25TS 9IS 8704 736231 1043916 - - 1492101 2013,1%
Total s RgE TSR GIGN AT G4 B0SOM8 IBMB - - 20835 2%IR
Net assefs AERE 989693 1081668 387941 410072 1029204 1025005 - - 2406838 2516745
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the FAlER REEE AR R B RE 225
financial statements of the associated companies adjusted - REBEREH 2EMAFERAEM
for any fair value adjustments made at the time of acquisition. FEE o
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18 Interests in associated companies 18 REEZE N T 2 xS ()

(continued)
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information REBRHEBES A ERRAEZRY 2%
presented to the carrying amount of the Group’s interests BRI BR

in its associated companies:

CECIC HKC CECIC HKE CECIC HKC (Gansu) Linyi National

Wind Power Company Wind Power Wind Power Environmental
Limited CompanyLimited Company Limited New Energy Co,, Ltd Total

PEREREIRE TEREREIRE  GERER(IEIAN LA
(Rl)ERAA (F)ARAT $RARLA ARAA it

2015 014 2015 014 2015 2014 2015 014 2015 2014
“%-1f CR-PmE CE-EEF CE-MF C§-BF CS-ME OC%-3F CR-PF CE-Rf CRpE
HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS00D  HKSO000  HKS'00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS00
Tan  TAr  TEm  Thr  TRn TR T TEr  TET TiEn

At 1 January #-A-A

Opening net assets EfAREE 1,081,668 1149762 410,072 398959 1,025,005 1,078,308 - a14r 2516745 2,838,456

Profi for the year RERRA VA4 G472 12298 0104 103645 30543 K7 R L T M T

Other comprefensive loss E2AEE (56498)  (2260) (2603 (8%91)  (59912)  (24502) - (B8) (139,013 (66,26

Dividends i (74901)  (105578)  (114826) - s (3934 - - (126261)  (164920)

Disposal of equily nterest (Note) ~ HERAER(Fi) - - - - - - - (08229) - (082%9)

At 31 December M-A=t-A

Closing net assefs EfEERE 989,693 1081668 387941 410072 1029204 1,050 - - 2406838 2516745

Reporting entiies’ share in % REAZEEL AN 40% 40% 30% 30% 40% 40% - - NIA NA

Group's inerests inassociated  SERBEAFZER

companies 395877 432667 116382 123022 411681 410,002 - - 923940 965,691

Note: Linyi National Environmental New Energy Co., Ltd was disposed in Hiat - B RIRIEERABRARNER T —MNFHE -
2014. The share of profit and other comprehensive income was up to AMEEMREMEARABEZESHHOEEFHIEL
date of reclassification as assets held for sale. ELEHS -
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19 Prepayments and trade and other

e MBEHRME

19 }‘Eﬁ%ﬁ%u&@ﬂ&ﬂﬁ%ﬂ&ﬁ

receivables A EN
2015 2014
—E-RF —F-EF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
(=2 FBxT FHETT
Non-current EFRE
Prepayments TR IR 2,527 997
Other receivables A 8 Wk (b) 20,192 22,640
22,719 23,637
Current B
Trade receivables FEULAR X (a) 48,741 81,796
Prepayments and T8 - 7RI T H A e GR (b)
other receivables 16,933 22,148
o f_55_,6_7l_l 103,944
88,393 127,581
Notes: KtaE -

(a) At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables by the Group’s revenue recognition policy is as follows:

(a)

RZFE—RAFR=-ZT—NF+=-A=+—H " ' E
W AR R IR AN 55 B W o T SRIBUR 2 8 2 BR R 2 T 1

T~
2015 2014
—E-EF —ZT—mE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FHxT
Less than 30 days LH30H 18,768 29,405
More than 30 days and within 60 days HBiA30HBR60H A 1,975 8,682
More than 60 days and within 90 days HB#A60H1BR908 A 1,864 6,250
More than 90 days HiAE90H 26,134 37,459
48,741 81,796

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables by invoice due date is as follows: (Note i)

RZE—RAFR-T—NF+-_A=+—H " ' E
BRI ZF AL B ZRROTAT « (K

#Ei)
2015 2014
=T-IF —F-mE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FTHERT FET
Less than 30 days LH30H 48,741 67,947
More than 30 days and within 60 days HBiB30HBR608 A - =
More than 60 days and within 90 days B0 HER0H A - =
More than 90 days B0 H - 13,849
48,741 81,796
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19 Prepayments and trade and other
receivables (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(continued)
Note i:

The Group allows a credit period of 30 days to its trade customers.
Trade receivables that are less than 30 days past due are not
considered impaired. As at 31 December 2015, trade receivable
of HK$48.7 million (2014: HK$67.9 million) were fully performing.
Included in this balance, HK$44.8 million (2014: HK$59.0
million) represented the electricity tariff receivables due from the
government which have to go through an approval procedure before
issuing invoices and invoices of these related receivables were not
issued as at 31 December 2015. As at 31 December 2014, trade
receivables of HK$13.8 million were past due but not impaired.
These relate to the invoiced government subsidies on the electricity
tariff which had not been allocated and distributed and were past
due over 12 months. These balances were fully settled during 2015.

Included in other receivables were input value-added taxation
recoverable of HK$26,234,000 (2014: HK$37,387,000) arising from
purchase of property, plant and equipment.

The carrying amount of the Group’s prepayments and trade and
other receivables is denominated in the following currencies:

e MBEHRME

19 ENREURBEBRARRE

YAV ENT )

M - ()
(a) (&)
Mt :

(c)

AEEREE S TFIREAIH0AZEES - &
H L RI0E 2 KRR T HEERE - R=F
—AF+=A=+—8 ' EUKERF48,700,000
BL(=Z — N4 : 67,900,000/ 7T ) EEE K
JBAT ° % AEETH © 44,800,000/ T (=T — M
4 : 59,000,000/ 7T ) 5 FE W BT & 2 1A 7 1 2
EREBAEL  MR-_ZE—RAFE+_A=+—
A% S ABEKRENEZRAL - R —N
F+ZA=+—H ' EUKERF13,800,000/#TE
MEMERRE - WERBNBRE AL EZNR
HERIRE BB 12E A N EWBTEBHE -
RELEAN T -RAFERNS BB -

a1 A H fth FE U 5K A FE UK 3 TR 32 7 26,234,000
B (=Z—MM4 : 37,387,000/ 7T) * JWRE R
B - MR o

AR (B I8 A R IR e A MR BR R e At R MR 2 BR T
BEATIIEEE :

2015 2014

=T-EF —F-mE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FaT FHIT

Hong Kong dollars BIT 206 205
Renminbi AR 88,105 127,347
Singapore dollars T 82 29
88,393 127,581

All prepayments and trade and other receivables do not contain
impaired assets. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivables
mentioned above.

A bank borrowing is secured by certain of the Group’s trade
receivables with carrying values of HK$44.7 million (2014: HK$59.8
million) (Note 24).

TEBLRERREARAR | —T-RFFR

P TR SRR R FE U AR R R L s R R SR B
HEEE NBREAHEERRZESER LT
EHRBIEERZ REE -

RITIE T A S B AR EE44,700,000% 78 (=
T — U4 : 59,800,000/ 7T ) 2 %& T FE UK BR TR
AR (KisE24) o
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e MBEHRME

. = 4= 4=
20 Short-term bank deposit 20 EHIRITFER
As at 31 December 2015, the short-term bank deposit was R-ZEBE—RF+_-_A=1+—8  SHERTEF
denominated in Renminbi. The interest rate on the deposit HAAREEE - TR ZFEAE3.41% @ B
was 3.41%, and had maturity of 182 days. HIH 2182K °
21 Cash and cash equivalents 21 RERBFEEEY
2015 2014
—E-RF —F-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FATT
Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHEES 99,731 122,247
Short-term bank deposits 52 EAERTT 175K 81,519 156,024
181,250 278,271
2015 2014
—E-1F —F-OmF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FTET T
(a) Placed in banks in the PRC: (a) FHARAAEERIT :
— denominated in Renminbi —LAAREEE 52,493 81,349
— denominated in Hong Kong dollars —AABTTEE 36,813 37,504
— denominated in US dollars — AZETTEHE 7,592 471
(b) Placed in banks in Hong Kong: (b) FRREREZIRIT -
— denominated in Hong Kong dollars —AABTTEE 11,240 1,344
— denominated in Renminbi —LAAREE 72,934 157,419
— denominated in Singapore dollars — BAFT AN JoEHE 2 2
(c) Cash in hand (c) FeERE 176 182
181,250 278,271
The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were REER 2 ERFMEAT :
as follows:
2015 2014
—E-RF —E -
HKS$ RMB HK$ RMB
BT AR BT AR
Short-term bank deposits %2 Ef$R1T1F % 2.15%- 3.38%—
0.6% 3.89% - 3.79%
The short-term bank deposits of the Group have original AREBZRHRTERZRIBAEA—EMm
maturities of one to two months. @A -
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21 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)
Significant restrictions
Cash and short-term deposits of HK$96,898,000 (2014:
HK$119,324,000) are held in Mainland China and are
subject to local exchange control regulations, under which
the balances could not be exported freely out of Mainland
China. The repatriation of fund out from Mainland China is
possibly conducted by way of dividends or other means as
complied to the regulations.

22 Share capital

Ordinary shares

21 Be R BRESEEY @)
B KR H
JARR B A B 25 78 /3R & K 58 17 796,898,000
BT (ZE— P4 : 119,324,00056 7T ) /BB 1
EINETHIRE - Kt - ZEEHTEE
FEE R B Rk - &€ AIFEBERSEME
SPARTE A9 T\ AR B A RE o

22 RZA

Non-redeemable convertible
preference shares of
of HK$0.01 each

HK$0.01 each EREB0.01ETZ Total
BRAEE0IETZERR FAEEARELR @t
Number of Number of
Note shares HK$'000 shares HK$'000 HK$'000
HisE REGHE THET REAEE FEx TAT
Issued and fully paid: ~ BETRET :
At 1 January 2014, RZZ—-ME
31 December 2014, —R—H"
1 January 2015 “T-mF
t-A=t-8:
“Z-hF
—A—H (a), (b) 2,356,371,843 23,564 300,000,000 3,000 26,564
Buy-back of convertible B[ AT AR E 5 %
preference shares (a) - - (300,000,000) (3,000) (3,000)
At31December 2015 ~RZT—AF
+-A=1+—H 2,356,371,843 23,564 = = 23,564

Notes:

(a) On 23 November 2010, the Company issued and allotted
300,000,000 convertible preference shares to STAR Butterfly
Energy, Ltd. (“STAR”) at HK$0.65 amounting to HK$195 million to
STAR for cash. STAR may at any time during the ensuring 4 years
require the Company to issue to them a maximum of 260,000,000
additional preference shares at a price of HK$0.75 per additional
preference share. The convertible preference shares carry rights
to convert into ordinary shares at the initial conversion rate of 1
convertible preference share to 1 ordinary share, such conversion
rate being subject to customary adjustments. The 260,000,000
additional preference shares options were expired on 23 November
2014 and no additional preference shares options had been
exercised.

On 22 October 2015, the Group completed its buy-back of

300,000,000 convertible preference shares from STAR at a cash
consideration of HK$93.9 million.

PEBLERRIRERRAR | —E-OAFFH

i -

(a) R=ZZF—ZF+—A=+=H ' KAQFL0.65
7 TT[AISTAR Butterfly Energy, Ltd. ([STARJ)
%77 % Fid % 300,000,000 fi% f& {& A 195,000,000
VS TT 2 AR MR B SE IR AR EUR & o STARRI A
AR P04 8 A (] B ) SRR A B DA 9 AR BB IME SE AR
0.757% 7T 2 {81 [A) & £& % %17 260,000,000 i% §8
SMESERR o PR AR (B S AR BT 75 4 | T 4% 1 AR AT #2
R B 50 AR A1 AR IR AR 2 902 S AR b 3 IR K
MR AR RBEZECARBER - ZF
260,000,000fR FESMBERBEREE R = —1W
F+—A=+=BEmnRkIEBIME LG RE
AT -

W-E—HE+A=T-A  AAANRERE
93,900,000 7 7t 78 X 1) STAR i 81 300,000,000
BT SRR SER -
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22 Share capital (continued)

Notes: (continued)

114

(b)

Share options are granted to employees, senior executives or
officers, managers, directors or consultants of any members of the
Group or any Invested Entity.

The exercise price must be at least the higher of

(i the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant;

(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) ~ the nominal value of a share.

An option must be exercised within 10 years from the date on which
it is granted or such shorter period as the Board may specify at the
time of grant. An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 10 business days from the date of offer
and a consideration of HK$1 must be paid upon acceptance.

The share options were lapsed on 19 January 2015. As at 31
December 2014, 1,375,000 units of share options remained
outstanding and their weighted average exercise price was
HK$0.764 per share.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2014 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of approximately 0.05 years.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited |

e MBEHRME

22 BRA (&

Hiet : (&)

(b)

RARAAREBE MEMK B RAREMREE
BZES SRITRASHERAR K2 &
FHEER L ERE o

TRBARIBUTERSE

() BRI B BEBRME R REXRF
W E

(i) FRip BRI A EIAT T & 5 A R AR
P AmERADTFHEHE : &

(i)  PRHMEE -

BREANRN PR T FRBESEUENE
HEFFEERz REHRATE - RERHZBR
BEEZOA B HESERDRREMEER  ZR
AT 1B TR E -

BRER-ZT—AF—ATAARK R=F
—mME+=ZA=+—RH ' & 1,375,000% &
AR M AR ETTEE - MENBEFHTEEATR
0.7648 7T °

R-ZB—FE+ A=+ —BRARITEZBEE
Z BT INEF A K FHIRHA0.065 -
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23 Reserves

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MBEHRME

23 f#E

Employee
share-based
Share Exchange  compensation Retained
premium reserve reserve earnings Total
R aE EiffE EERORBERE RERAF Eh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THL THL THT THT
Balance at 1 January 2014 RZZF-mE-A-H
a3 993,505 174,273 1,945 592,044 1,761,767
Currency translation EHAEED
differences - (41,042) - - (41,042)
Release of exchange reserve  HE—HEE N K
upon disposal of an BHERLRE
associated company - (4,236) - - (4,236)
Lapse of employee share EEBERERREAN
option benefits - - (1,428) 1,428 -
Profit for the year RERRT - - - 14,462 14,462
Balance at 31 December 2014 R=ZT—[4
TZRA=T-Bz&% 993,505 128,995 517 607,934 1,730,951
Balance at 1 January 2015 R=Z-1%-A-H
2R 993,505 128,995 517 607,934 1,730,951
Currency translation EHAEES
differences - (94,514) - - (94,514)
Buy-back of convertible BB [ TR B ek (P )
preference shares (Note) (100,600) - - 6,832 (93,768)
Lapse of employee share EERRERREAN
option benefits - - (517) 517 -
Profit for the year REE R - - - 40,454 40,454
Balance at 31 December 2015 R-Z—0%
TZA=T-Bz&H 892,905 34,481 - 655,737 1,583,123

i REBAEEEZSRNERBEFEEE L=
B HBRESERIEERGZERIFEA (R
FEZERED BN £ 125,000 L) °

Note: The credit to retained earnings represented difference between the
total consideration and the book value of those shares, netting off
the incremental transaction costs (including auditor’s remuneration
of HK$125,000) directly attributable to the equity transaction.
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24 Bank borrowings

24 RITERK

2015 2014
—E-51%F —TmF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET T
Non-current FEED 471,874 589,892
Current i 84,856 89,911
556,730 679,803

Amounts of HK$389 million (2014: HK$484 million) of 7 8 .389,000,0008 £ ( — & — g £ :
bank borrowings issued at variable rates are secured and 484,000,000 7T ) #2)% B Al 2 B 17 2 $R1T

guaranteed by fellow subsidiaries.

tERE TR - I F KB R BEER

Notes: Hiat -
(a)  The maturity of bank borrowings at the balance sheet date is as (a) MRHEERPITERZEBEWMT :
follows:
2015 2014
—HF —T—EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Within one year —FR 84,856 89,911
In the second year FF 84,857 89,911
In the third year to fifth year E=FRZERF 259,290 272,234
After the fifth year hFE 127,727 227,747
556,730 679,803
(b)  Bank borrowings are denominated in Renminbi. (b) SRITERAAREE -
(c)  The effective interest rate for variable rate bank borrowings at the (c) FIEFXRBITEFREEB ZERFERS. 54@
balance sheet date was 5.54% (2014: 6.37%). The effective interest (Z2—F: 6.37@) [ 7E | =R SRAT A AR
rate for fixed rate bank borrowings at the balance sheet date was HEHZEBRNER6.50E(ZE—MEF 6507)
6.50% (2014: 6.50%).
(d)  Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and (d)  SRITEFTIARKEE TYE - WBERRE &
equipment, prepaid land lease payments and trade receivables of f5f 4 3th 78 & R IE K FE W AR SR AE R 4R (PR 5E14 - 16
the Group (Notes 14, 16 and 19). %19) °
(e)  The Group had an undrawn borrowing facility amounted HK$85 (e) RIE-—RAF+-A=+—H AEEZRE
million as of 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$85 million). HR {8 7R B & %8 /385,000,000 7T (= F — M4 :
85,000,000787T) °
() The fair value of the fixed rate bank borrowings as at 31 December (f) RZZB-—RAF+-A=+—H ' BEMNRRTE
2015 is HK$183 million (2014: HK$200 million). The carrying 2 X F{E45183,000,000/& T (= F — M4 :
amounts of the remaining bank borrowings approximate their fair 200,000,000/ 7T ) ° &8 T RITER 2 BRE (B H

values.
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24 SRITERK @)

Hiet : (&)

24 Bank borrowings (continued)

Notes: (continued)

RBEPRAREERELFIEED AR - A
EHEE A BRI A AREE R T ;

(9) The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes (9)
and the contractual repricing dates or maturity (whichever is earlier)
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
6 months or less SNEA AT 194,733 241,972
6-12 months ANET=EA 194,733 241,972
389,466 483,944
25 Deferred income tax liabilities 25 EELEMBHAR
The analysis of deferred tax liabilities is as follows: EERBBEESTOT :
2015 2014
—E-HF —=—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Deferred tax liabilities: FEEFRIBE E ¢
- To be recovered after more than — R+ EAEKDE
12 months 25,665 28,529
— To be recovered within 12 months — R+ =@ AR E 7,407 5,549
33,072 34,078
The movements in deferred income tax liabilities during RNEEBRN  EEMEHRABEBEZESHHT -
the year are as follows:
Fair value
adjustment

arising from
business Withholding

combinations tax Total
REERSH
ZAFEAE BB st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T FHEIT
At 1 January 2014 R-—Z—m&E—H—A (2,355) (37,585) (39,940)
Currency translation bR mE =R

differences 38 840 878

Credited to the profit or
loss (Note 11)

At 31 December 2014
At 1 January 2015

Currency translation
differences

Credited/(charged) to the profit or

loss (Note 11)

At 31 December 2015

TREBLERREERRAR |

FERERAAMRET)
MZ_Z—MF
+t=ZA=+—8

RZE—HF—H—H
B 5 i 4

EEmKAAA ()
(MtsE11)

334 4,650 4,984
(1,983) (32,095) (34,078)
(1,983) (32,095) (34,078)
67 1,676 1,743
328 (1,065) (737)
(1,588) (31,484) (33,072)
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25

26

118

Deferred income tax liabilities
(continued)

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax
assets of HK$28,208,000 (2014: HK$27,078,000) in
respect of losses amounting to HK$114,638,000 (2014:
HK$111,495,000) that can be carried forward against
future taxable income. These tax losses have no expiry
dates except tax losses of HK$111,854,000 (2014:
HK$108,711,000) which expire at various dates up to 2020
(2014: 2019).

Trade and other payables

e MBEHRME

25 RIEFIBHEE @)

N & B I £ 3t &5 18 114,638,0007% 7T ( —
T — P04 : 111,495,000 7T ) R IE T
Ffr 1§ 71 & £ 28,208,000 70 ( =& — I

& : 27,078,000 7% T ) FA LA 4 & 1K 5 A

BRERBBA - ZEHABEL &I

B 111,854,000 L ( =T — PO :
108,711,000/8 70 ) 2 M IBEBEABFREZ

AR B HBEw

—ECEF(ZENEF: ZE-NF)LEZ

26 B BRI HABFE K

2015 2014

—E-EHF —FmE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHETT

Trade payables FETERIR 546 271
Payables for acquisition and construction of HRIEE MERWE -

property, plant and equipment W2 K 5 2 IR 58,832 96,060

Other payables and accruals HAb B BT & A 6,533 7,793

65,911 104,124

At 31 December 2015 and 2014, the ageing analysis of
trade payables is as follows:

R_E—RAER_E—NF+-_A=+—
B ENEREZRZEROTAT

2015 2014

—E-EF —F-lF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FH&T FAT

Less than 12 months P+ _—EAH 456 81
12 months and more +={@ A &I £ 90 190
546 271

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other

75 (8 R A5 BR Ak e EL A B A5 R 2 BRTED (B4R DA

payables are denominated in the following currencies: TEBIME :
2015 2014
—E-RF —Z—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Hong Kong dollars BIT 2,564 2,380
Renminbi AR¥E 63,312 101,706
Singapore dollars AN T 35 38
65,911 104,124

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited |
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27 Commitments 27
(a) Capital commitments
Capital expenditure at the balance sheet date but not

yet incurred was as follows:

e MBEHRME

RIE

(a) EAREE
REEHE REBBAEEZE AR
SR NN

2015 2014
—EB-AfF —E-mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Contracted but not provided for BRI ERHFEBABREEIRE

capital expenditure in respect of B2 EARFAZ B
alternative energy projects 5,936 2,117
5,936 2,117

(b) Commitments under operating leases
The aggregate future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of

land and buildings were as follows:

(b) EREHER T 2 &I
BEAR L RIET 2 T ARG S
BEERIEN 2 RERSQELT |

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FATT
No later than 1 year —FA 516 935
Later than 1 year and —FRERAFA
no later than 5 years - 525
516 1,460
FEBEREREEBRAR | ZT—HFFWm 119
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28 Related party transactions

The Group entered into transactions with the following
related parties for the years ended 31 December 2015
and 2014, in addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements.

(a) Administrative services fee, which includes the office
overhead, and reimbursement of cost of internal
audit, legal and information technology department
of HK$990,000 (2014: HK$990,000) was paid to
HKC.

(b) Office rental of HK$705,000 (2014: HK$684,000) was
paid to HKC.

The above related party transactions are continuing
connected transactions exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange.

(c) Key management compensation
Key management solely represents directors of the

Company. The compensation paid or payable to key
management is shown as below:

REMBRRME

28 BEEE R Z

BE_Z—RAFK_ZT—NF+_A=+—
BLIEFE @ BREEUBERREMESIFTIFEE
Gh REBBE TR ARV 2R °

() MEBRIIMNTEREREER &
FEHAZEERAY  URERMAI
B AR REABEBMAKA
990,000/& 7T (== — M4 : 990,000
BIL) ©

(b) MBEBEER NP EF$ 705,000
B0 (= Z — U4 : 684,000/87T) °

B S R B IREH R ATE S ET R A
(I LR 8]]) F14A 3318 AR EE R B <F
BRIPIR - FEFZ - A B IRE A&
BECHBERERS -

(c) FEEEABZRM

TREBEANBEEARRES - N
HENETEEEAE ZHMEZIT

2015 2014

—B-fHF —F—mF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TE T T

Salaries and other benefits e MEMET 3,262 2,627

Directors’ fees Y 735 750
Pension cost — defined RIREKA— E58

contribution scheme HFETE] 53 34

4,050 3,411

(d) As at 31 December 2015, the Group provided
guarantee to counter parties in respect of credit
facilities granted to certain associated companies of
HK$127,462,000 (2014: HK$150,060,000).

The transactions did not constitute a connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

(d) R=ZE—HFE+-_A=+—8 " £&&
ERETHEAERZEERER
¥ e 5 IR 4E R 127,462,000 7T (=
Z—JO4 : 150,060,000/ 7T) °

BERARZANTBR EHRANEI4AE
PIREZRRERS °
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29 REBERERMEE

29 Notes to consolidated cash flow

statement
Reconciliation of profit before income tax FrEHRANESREEERBRE 2
to cash generated from operations ¥ BR
2015 2014
—E-HF —F-lF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET T
Profit before income tax FrAS A8 Al o A 45,021 14,883
Finance costs BLE AR 43,154 37,070
Finance income 7SI A (6,583) (5,319)
Depreciation and amortisation I E K 6 78,122 61,691
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEYIZE - Hes KRBTSR
and equipment (22) (389)
Loss on disposal of an associated & — A& A Al Es e
company - 1,516
Share of profits less losses of associated FEAG B 2 2 B AR 1B
companies (60,916) (45,076)
Fair value gain on derivative liability MTETHAE AT ERR - (46)
Other gain HAbYas - (98)
Operating profit before working EEE BRI LE R
capital changes 98,776 64,232
(Increase)/decrease in inventory =FEOEM), SR (196) 414
Decrease in trade and other receivables JFEE LT B SR R 5L At R MR 39,091 8,981
Decrease in trade and other payables JE 1 BR R R 5L At A R > (1,991) (206)
Cash generated from operations KEFSIRE 135,680 73,421
PREBAEREEERAR | ZE—AFFR 121
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30 Financial instruments by category

122

e MBEHRME

30 RERE D 2EMTA

Loans and
receivables
BERRERR
HK$'000
T
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet RGEEERBRMTEE
31 December 2014 —T—pmE+-_A=+—8
Trade and other receivables (Note 19) FEUR BR SR e Eo A FE W R (B9 =E19) 126,584
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) RekBeEEW(HE21) 278,271
Total st 404,855
31 December 2015 —E—RFt+-_A=1+—H
Trade and other receivables (Note 19) JFEE Lk B 3 R L P MR (BT R 19) 85,866
Short-term bank deposit (Note 20) FEHASRTT I X (M95E20) 4,269
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) RekBEeEEYW(HE21) 181,250
Total 5T 271,385
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
2 8 68 R A5 51 BR
ZEEas
HK$°000
F& T
Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet RGRESEEABRATERE
31 December 2014 —E—NMF+-_A=+—H
Bank borrowings (Note 24) RITE R (HEE24) 679,803
Trade and other payables (Note 26) JE 1S B R B EL A P A R (BT 526) 104,124
Total HEt 783,927
31 December 2015 —T—RHFt+-_A=+—8
Bank borrowings (Note 24) RITIER(FIFE24) 556,730
Trade and other payables (Note 26) JE AT BR R R H A B A 3R (Bt 726 ) 65,911
Total st 622,641
China Renewable Energy Investment Limited | Annual Report 2015
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31 Balance sheet and reserve

movement of the Company

e MBEHRME

31 %’Aﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%

Balance sheet of the Company RARIEEEER
2015 2014
—E-HF —F-lF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
5 FE T F&TT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RN P 5 1314 12261
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H {th e Uk 269 498
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSEI B A R FRIE 1,315,570 1,385,491
Cash and cash equivalents Be MREEEY 28,070 79,248
Total current assets REBEERE __ 1,343,909 _ _ 1,465,237
Total assets EEHAE 1,355,223 1,477,498
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to A2 FEFIEHE ABERAE
equity holders of the Company R w#E
Share capital &N 23,564 26,564
Reserves i a 1,126,224 1,242 954
Total equity FERAERE _ 1,149,788 1,269,518
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERIB B A Rl 78 204,047 206,552
Other payables HAb 5K 1,388 1,428
Total current liabilities RENAERASE ___205435 207,980
Total equity and liabilities EnkBEAHE 1,355,223 1,477,498
OEl Kang, Eric LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel
=i REHR
Director Director
o 2
PEBERRREARRAR | —ZE—AFFR 123
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31

124

Balance sheet and reserve
movement of the Company

(continued)
Note (a) Reserves movement of the
Company

e MBEHRME

31 %ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁ@
(#)

fiEE(a) A& R f# 2 B

Employee
Other  share-based
Share  Exchange reserve compensation  Retained

premium reserve (Note) reserve earnings Total

Hibfe &k
Ritia® ERfE (W) RRRE RERFA L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TET TEL ThAT TET TEL ThET
Balance at 1 January 2014 RZF-ME-A-Bz&R 993,505 134,076 98,709 1,945 30,219 1,268,454
Currency translation differences ERREEE - (31,926) - - - (31,926)
Lapse of employee share option benefits ESERERTIXT - - - (1,428) 1428 -
Profit for the year FERET - - - - 16,426 16,426
Balence at 31 December 2014 RE-MET-A=t-AzEH 993,505 102,150 98,709 517 48073 1,242,954
Balance at 1 January 2015 RIF-RE-A-BeER 993,505 102,150 98,709 517 48073 1,242,954
Currency translation differences EiREEE - (73,677) - - - (73,677)
Buy-back of convertible preference shares BETARELR (100,600) - - - 6,832 (93,768)
Lapse of employee share option benefits ESERERTIXT - - - (517) 517 -
Profit for the year FERET - - - - 50,715 50,715
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZE-RET-A=T-H&H 892,905 28473 98,709 - 106,137 1,126,224

Note: The other reserve of the Company related to an acquisition prior to 1

January 2001 and continues to be held in reserves.

Het - ARRZEMHEBR-_FT—F—F—HAIZ—

FBERER - WRERERET -
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32 Benefits and interests of directors

and chief executive officer

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive

officer is set out below:

e MBEHRME

32 EERARERZBFRME
m

BESRITBABHNFHAT

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE—_Z—HF+_A=+—HItFE
Employer's
Discretionary  contribution to a
bonuses’ retirement
Name of Director BERZ Fees Salaries* (Note 4)  benefit scheme? Total
KA BfkeitEz
e He! (Hzta) e @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL TAL AL AL TAL
OEl Kang, Eric R 75 1,078 162 18 1,333
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel 2R 75 1,182 200 18 1,475
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy? EER 75 550 90 17 732
WANG Sing® T 60 - - - 60
TANG Siu Kui, Ermest BkE 150 - - - 150
YU Hon To, David NER 150 - - - 150
TIAN Yuchuan BE 150 - - - 150
735 2,810 452 53 4,050
# The amounts represented emoluments in respect of services # HEBMRAREHSE AN KENBATNEL

provided in connection with the management of the affairs of the

Company or its subsidiaries undertaking.

TEBLRERREARAR | —T-RFFR
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32

126

Benefits and interests of directors
and chief executive officer (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2014

32 EERTRARZ ERRME
m (&)
BE-FT—MFE+=A=+—HILFE

Employer’s
Discretionary  contribution to a
bonuses* retirement
Name of Director BENA Fees Salaries® (Note 4) benefit scheme* Total
BERL jResElz
ik et (Bitsxa) EE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAL TAT THL TAL
OEl Kang, Eric!" i 75 1,048 131 17 1,271
LEUNG Wing Sum, Samuel RRK 75 1,240 208 17 1,540
WONG Jake Leong, Sammy® ERRM 75 - - - 75
WANG Sing® T 75 - - - 75
TANG Siu Kui, Emest BkE 150 - - - 150
YU Hon To, David aEE 150 _ _ _ 150
TIAN Yuchuan BEN 150 - - - 150
750 2,288 339 34 3,411
* The amounts represented emoluments in respect of services # HeBARTEHEEEARAREWBRARNEL

provided in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company or its subsidiaries undertaking.

Notes:

(1) Mr. OEI Kang, Eric is the chief executive officer of the Group

(2) Appointed on 1 January 2014

(3) Resigned with effect from 22 October 2015

(4) Discretionary bonuses are determined on the performance of
directors

During the year, no housing allowance, other benefits and
remunerations in respect of accepting office as director
were paid to or receivable by the directors in respect of
their services as directors (2014: same). During the year,
no emoluments were paid or receivable by the directors
in respect of director’s other services in connection with
the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking (2014: same).

BRIEBR TRERTS A F M o

Kt -

(1) =BEREREAREBZITHRESR
(2) RZZE—NF—A—HEZE
3) MW-ZE—HFETA-+—BHEE
(4) RBBEAREEEZREAET

REERN MESERECESTRHBEX
MR EFZR Rtt@FEME(=F
—mOF : BRAER) - AFEER - MEES
REEEARBNEMBAREHMIEMHZ
HilRGESIRERME (—F—mF :
1BIARRD)
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32 Benefits and interests of directors
and chief executive officer (continued)

(A)

(B)

©

(D)

(E)

PEIBLRE

Directors’ retirement benefits

During the year, no retirement benefits were paid
to or receivable by the directors in respect of
their services as directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries or other services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiary undertaking (2014: same).

Directors’ termination benefits

During the year, no payments or benefits in respect
of termination of directors’ services were paid or
made, directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are
any payable (2014: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

During the year, no consideration was provided to
or receivable by third parties for making available
directors’ services (2014: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

During the year, there are no loans, quasi-loans
or other dealings in favour of the directors, their
controlled bodies corporate and connected entities
(2014: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in note 24 “Bank borrowings”
and note 28 “Related party transactions” to the
consolidated financial statements, the transactions
with HKC and its subsidiaries and in which Mr.
OEI Kang, Eric was interested, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

FREEBRRAR | —E—RAFFR

e MBEHRME

32 EERITRARZEBNRE

o (45)

(A)

(B)

©

(D)

(E)

ESRAKER

AEERN > BEESHETARAR
EffBAREEARNERARAHE
BB 2~ B = A5 T 4R 2 Eo AR TS X
MREUERAREN(ZF—HF : BR
R -

ESEBER

AEER > BEAKEESREMNE
BHEEAEE N IAEHER R
HAEN - TREEAENFIR(ZF M
FE)-

RENESREM@E =5 XM
ZRE

AEER > RERENESREME
NE=ZAHE=TERUZRE(-Z
—OF - &) o

BRUES ESREHZEE
FRAEERASHEACER ¥
EXRHEMRZ ZEHR

AEERN HMENES BFE2XE
HEERBEERATHEAZER
EERREMZZ(—F—EF : &) -

BEERRS  THIEHNHPZE
KR

Brire BB maRM 24T RITERI R
Misxos [ Bl T R 5 IR EE - &5
B R N LB A B A R M S A
HhEm X550 ARELE
IARBERBARAESTNETEE
FEEEEEA LD - MRAFEE
REFINAFEATAREFENE
ARS -~ BHREH
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33 TEMBADRBE AT

TREINEERRUAEBMEER LEE
FEBRIEZEZHNBARRBE AR -

33 Principal subsidiaries and
associated companies
Listed below are the subsidiaries and associated
companies which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affect the result and/or net assets of the Group.

128

Place of Issued
incorporation/ share capital/ Percentage of equity/
operation and Paid up Paid up registered
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities registered capital capital held
EMARL EEBRR BRTRA/BHEM fisln, BREMES
AR EEERED TEEH &% BAk
2015 2014
—E-5% —T-MF
Subsidiaries
HEAR
Best Whole Holdings Limited* Hong Kong Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
REZBRAERDA" ) REER 18T
Joy Holdings Limited* British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$1 100% 100%
EBRUES EEER ES
Hong Kong New Energy (Si Zi Wang Qi Il) Hong Kong Investment holding HK$1,000 100% 100%
Wind Power Limited*
BENERNTFEE-RREERAR" B REZR 1,000 7T
HKE (Da He) Holdings Limited* Hong Kong Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
BAMBRRT)ERERA RN B REERR 1B
HKE (Wind Power) Holdings Limited* British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$1 100% 100%
BEMEREZ)ERERAR RERUES REERR v
China Renewable Energy (Services) Limited Hong Kong Human resources HK$1 100% 100%
management
HEBLERER(ER)ERAR B ANBRER 1787
HKE Danjinghe (BVI) Wind Power Limited** British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$1,000 100% 100%
B8R E R (BV) AR AR HERUES RERK 1,000% 7T
HKE (BVI) Limited** British Virgin Islands Investment holding US$1 100% 100%
BEHERBV)ERAR HERUES RERK 1%
HKE (Gansu) Wind Power Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
BEMER(HRREERAR" Bt/ RERK 18T
Hong Kong New Energy (Si Zi Wang Qi) Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$2 100% 100%
Wind Power Limited*
BEFRNTFER)REERA A" g/ H REER 28T
HKC (Linyi) Holdings Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$1 100% 100%
ERRR(BNBERERAR" g/ H REER 1B
HKE (Danjinghe) Wind Power Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$4 100% 100%
ARMER(ERT)REERAR" BB,/ H REER 4B
Sinoriver International Limited** British Virgin Islands/PRC  Investment holding US$1 100% 100%
B EBRERA RERZRS,/HE REEZR 127
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33 Principal subsidiaries and

e MBEHRME

33 TEMBADRBE AT

associated companies (continued) (48)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ share capital/ Percentage of equity/
operation and Paid up Paid up registered
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities registered capital capital held
MY EE R ERTRA/BRZH fiks, BREmER
8 EEERER TEXHK &x Aol
2015 2014
—E-If —FPE
Subsidiaries
HEAR
Sinoriver International (Wind Power) Limited* Hong Kong/PRC Investment holding HK$20 100% 100%
HI| B (RE)ERAR" Bt/ HE REER 207 7T
APC Wind Power Pte Limited** Singapore Investment holding SGD10 100% 100%
K REZR 1087 T
Asia Wind Power (Mudanjiang) Company Ltd.** PRC/Sino-foreign equity ~ Wind Power project in HK$100,000,000 86% 86%
joint venture Heilongjiang, the PRC
SHENEEHDI)ERAR B/ RINEELE RAEBETIZESN 100,000,0007%
HEIEE
Hong Kong Wind Power (Muling) Co. Ltd.** PRC/Sino-foreign equity ~ Wind Power project in HK$150,100,000 86.68% 86.68%
joint venture Heilongjiang, the PRC
BEERNEE(BE)ERAA RE/ PHRELE RAEBETZESN 150,100,00077T
HEREE
BENRN T TEREERA R PRC/Sino-foreign equity ~ Wind Power project in RMB166,480,000 100% 100%
joint venture Siziwang Qi, Inner
Mongolia, the PRC
PE/ HHEELE RPEREENTFERZ  ARK166,480,0007
EVIEEIEE!
e R T TR AR AR PRC/Sino-foreign equity ~ Wind power project in RMB172,526,500 100% 100%
joint venture Siziwang Qi, Inner
Mongolia, the PRC
PE/ HHEELE RPEREENTERZ  ARE172,526,5007
EVIEEIEE!
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #H& &R zRMIET

33 Principal subsidiaries and 33 FEMBATIREEE DT

130

associated companies (continued) (48)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ share capital/ Percentage of equity/
operation and Paid up Paid up registered
Name kind of legal entity Principal activities registered capital capital held
MR EE UK BRTRA/BHGER fiks, BEEmES
8 EERRER TEXH &xK BAk
2015 2014
—B-H% —2-mE
Associated companies
BENT
CECIC HKC Wind Power Company Limited**™ PRC/Sino-foreign equity ~ Wind power project in RMB545,640,000 40% 40%
joint venture Danjinghe, Hebei,
the PRC
SRR N R E (RIL) BB AFHD FE/HHEEE R B I B & 2 AR #545,640,0007T
BHEERE
CECIC HKE Wind Power Company Limited**™ PRC/Sino-foreign equity ~ Wind power project in RMB323,260,000 30% 30%
joint venture Lunaobao, Hebei,
the PRC
hER B RER N BB (RIL) FRA RO FE/HHEEE NGIENERlFoS [d AE#323,260,0007T
BHEERE
CECIC HKC (Gansu) Wind Power Company PRC/Sino-foreign equity ~ Wind power project in RMB589,620,000 40% 40%
Limited**= joint venture Changma, Gansu,
the PRC
RERER (R BN ESERARD B/ RINEELE REBEHEESZ AR #589,620,0007T
BHEERE
Remarks: it -
i Interest held by subsidiaries + BEXHEMBATIEAE
# Not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers # WIEFHR LR KB et E R EZ
=l Unofficial English transliterations or translations for identification o FEFERE N FE B:E - (EHER -

purpose only.

China Renewable Energy Investment Limited

Annual Report 2015



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
I FEEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
—E-nf  ZE-mE =5 —ET-—F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET FTHET AT THT
Consolidated statement of  #A&2EWRARE
comprehensive income
Revenue Wiz
Continuing operations BEICEER 132,919 97,334 113,744 99,513 89,897
Discontinued operations BRIEREER - = = = 792
132,919 97,334 113,744 99,513 90,689
Profit/(loss) before income tax Fr{SHi AR,/ (E18)
Continuing operations BEICEER 45,021 14,883 33,990 (110,367) (4,317)
Discontinued operations B R - - = 100 (3,486)
45,021 14,883 33,990 (110,267) (7,803)
Income tax (expense)/credit  Fr{E&i (X H), /H e
Continuing operations SRS B R (5,669) (1,922) (6,382) 15,648 12,369
Discontinued operations BRI - = = = -
(5,669) (1,922) (6,382) 15,648 12,369
Profit/(loss) for the year KERRN,/ (BE)
Continuing operations FEREETS 39,352 12,961 27,608 (94,719) 8,052
Discontinued operations BAR R E T - - = 100 (3,486)
39,352 12,961 07,608 (94,619) 4,566
Non-controlling interests IR 1,102 1,501 586 11,877 8,630
Profit/(loss) attributable ARElERRFE ARG
to equity holders of wA,/ (ER)
the Company
Continuing operations BEICEER 40,454 14,462 28,194 (82,842) 16,682
Discontinued operations BRIHEE ¥R - - - 100 (3,486)
40,454 14,462 28,194 (82,742) 13,196
Consolidated balance sheet #HABEEER
Net current assets mEEESE 106,346 194,337 69,001 193,900 198,589
Non-current assets EREEE 2,005,566 2,188,493 2,324,548 2,120,406 2,293,555
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (504,946) (623,970) (602,176) (593,793) (684,653)
Net assets including non- EEFEBE
controlling interests IRt 1,606,966 1,758,860 1,791,373 1,720,513 1,807,491
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY TEEBBHME

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“B-Rf C—T-QmE —B-=f C—T--Ff "B——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT FHET FAT FAT
Share capital 2R 23,564 26,564 26,564 26,564 26,564
Reserves I 1,583,123 1,730,951 1,761,767 1,690,567 1,765,718
Non-controlling interests FEERR 279 1,345 3,042 3,382 15,209
Total equity R B 1,606,966 1,758,860 1,791,373 1,720,513 1,807,491
Earnings/(loss) per share SREHM,(BR)
- basic — &K
Continuing operations BECEER 1.72 0.61 1.20 (3.51) 1.42
Discontinued operations BRI R - - = = (0.30)
1.72 0.61 1.20 (3.51) 112
Dividend per share FRRE
- attributable to the year —REEEWG Nil & Nil Nil & Nil& Nil
Return on total equity (note) #8458 B3R = (ff3E) 2.45% 0.74% 1.54% (5.5%) 0.3%
Note: BEE -

Return on total equity represents the current year’s profit/loss for the year  REzBFEEREARNEE R BIEEYEAAEEERIER
expressed as a percentage of the closing total equity for the year concerned. WAL
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